Haringey Council NOTICE OF MEETING

Special Overview and Scrutiny Committee

WEDNESDAY, 20TH OCTOBER, 2010 at 18:00 HRS - HORNSEY HEALTH CENTRE -
HORNSEY HEALTH CENTRE - 151 PARK ROAD, LONDON, N8 8JD.

MEMBERS: Councillors Bull (Chair), Browne (Vice-Chair), Alexander, Basu, Ejiofor,
Newton and Winskill

Co-Optees: Ms Y. Denny (church representative),1 Church of England vacancy, Ms M
Jemide (Parent Governor), Ms S Marsh (Parent Governor), Ms Sandra
Young (Parent Governor), Ms H Kania (LINk Representative)

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. URGENT BUSINESS

Under the Council’s Constitution — Part 4 Section B paragraph 17 — no other
business shall be considered.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the
authority at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration,
or when the interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice
the member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their
financial position or the financial position of a person or body as described in
paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any
person or body described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

4, DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B,
paragraph 29 of the Council’s constitution.



5. SUPPORT FUNCTIONS REVIEW (SFR) — POLICY AND PERFORMANCE
FUNCTIONS (PAGES 1 -18)

The report seeks the views of Overview & Scrutiny about the proposals to review
the Council’s Policy & Performance functions.

6. CARDIOVASCULAR & CANCER SERVICES - PRESENTATION (PAGES 19 -
80)

To receive a brief presentation from NHS Commissioning Support for London, and
provide feedback on the cancer and cardiovascular case for change and proposed
model of care.

7. CHANGING FOR GOOD (PAGES 81 - 84)

To receive a presentation from the Mental Health Trust (MHT) — Haringey on the
development of Mental Health Services.

8. NHS HARINGEY UPDATE (PAGES 85 - 92)

To consider the update from NHS Haringey on matters requested by the Overview
& Scrutiny Committee.

9. PRIMARY CARE TRUST MERGERS (PAGES 93 - 94)

To consider the update on Primary Care Trust (PCT) mergers.

Under the Council’s Constitution — Part 4 Section B paragraph 17 — no other
business shall be considered

Ken Pryor Natalie Cole

Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Principal Committee Co-Ordinator
Member Services Tel: 020-8489 2919

River Park House Fax: 020-8489 2660

225 High Road Email: Natalie.Cole@haringey.gov.uk
Wood Green

London N22 8HQ
Tuesday 12" October 2010



Page 1 Agenda Item 5

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Overview & Scrutiny Committee On 20 October 2010

Report Title: Support Functions Review (SFR) — Policy and Performance Functions

Report of: Stuart Young, Assistant Chief Executive People and Organisational
Development

Signed :

Contact Officer : Eve Pelekanos, Corporate Head of Policy and Performance

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: [Key / Non-Key Decision]

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)

1.1.This report seeks the views of Overview & Scrutiny about the proposals to review
the Council’s Policy & Performance functions. It is recognised that staffing
reorganisation reports are not ordinarily considered by O&S Committee. However
in this instance the functions under review include those that provide support to
the Committee. In particular therefore Members of O&S are asked for their views
so that these may be included when the matter is considered at General
Purposes Committee on 28" October 2010. General Purposes Committee is the
appropriate body for determining staffing matters.

1.2.In February 2010 as part of the Support Functions Review (SFR), Chief
Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) agreed to review the organisation of the
policy and performance functions within the Council. Cabinet Members endorsed
proposals to create a council wide centralised shared service for the policy and
performance functions.

1.3. The attached report is based on that agreement and sets out a proposed model
for streamlining these functions. Cabinet Members gave a clear indication that a
50% saving is sought from this review.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1. The SFR of Policy and Performance contributes to the Council Plan priority of
‘Delivering high quality, efficient services’ by ensuring that these functions are




Page 2

provided in the most cost effective way.

3. Recommendations

That Members of O&S Committee:
4.1 Provide comments on the proposed centralised model for the policy and performance and the
associated efficiencies.

4.2 Bring to the attention of officers any matters that they wish to be considered by the meeting of
General Purposes Committee scheduled for 28™ October 2010, at which time officers will
recommend adoption of the revised staffing and service arrangements.

4.3 Note the timetable for delivery.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1.The new Strategic Planning and Support Unit will be key in ensuring that the
council has a policy framework which meets statutory requirements and enables
effective service delivery.

5. Other options considered
5.1. A range of alternate models of delivery were considered.

6. Summary
6.1. The attached report was approved by General Purposes Committee subject to a
final report back to their meeting on 28" October 2010. General Purposes
Committee is the appropriate body to determine staffing matters.

6.2.A formal period of consultation runs until 14™ October 2010 and officers are
compiling responses to the matters raised. It is anticipated that a revised set of
proposals will be dispatched for the meeting of General Purposes Committee
scheduled for 28™ October. At the time of this cover report those revised
proposals are not known, as the consultation period has yet to close.

6.3. Officers will report verbally to O&S Committee on 20™ October 2010 any
variations proposed to the attached report.

7. Chief Financial Officer Comments
7.1.As reported on the attached paper

8. Head of Legal Services Comments
8.1.As set out on the attached paper.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 3

9.1.Not applicable

10. Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments
10.1. As set out on the attached paper.

11. Consultation
11.1. As set out on the attached paper.

12. Service Financial Comments
12.1. not applicable

13. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
Appendix 1: The proposed model for Policy and Performance

14.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
14 1. Not applicable

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

General Purposes Committee On 23 September 2010

Report Title: Support Functions Review (SFR) — Policy and Performance Functions

Report of: Stuart Young, Assistant Chief Executive People and Organisational
Development

Signed :

Contact Officer : Eve Pelekanos, Corporate Head of Policy and Performance

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: [Key / Non-Key Decision]

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)

1.1. In February 2010 as part of the Support Functions Review (SFR), Chief
Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) agreed to review the organisation of the
policy and performance functions within the Council. On 15 July 2010 Cabinet
Advisory Board (CAB) endorsed proposals to create a council wide centralised
shared service for the policy and performance functions.

1.2. The attached report is based on that agreement and sets out a proposed model
for streamlining these functions. At Cabinet Advisory Board Members gave a
clear indication that a 50% saving is expected from this review.

1.3. Members to agree the proposed centralised model for the policy and performance and
the associated efficiencies.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. [click here to type]

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:
3.1. The SFR of Policy and Performance contributes to the Council Plan priority of
‘Delivering high quality, efficient services’ by ensuring that these functions are
provided in the most cost effective way.




Page 6

4. Recommendations

That Members:
4.1 Consider and agree the proposed centralised model for the policy and performance and the

associated efficiencies.

4.2 Delegate authority to the Assistant Chief Executive (People & Organisational Development) to

sign off amendments following formal consultation.

4.3 Note the timetable for delivery.

. Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1. The new Strategic Planning and Support Unit will be key in ensuring that the
council has a policy framework which meets statutory requirements and enables
effective service delivery.

. Other options considered
6.1.Not applicable

. Summary
7.1.In February 2010 as part of the SFR, CEMB agreed to review the organisation of
the policy and performance functions within the Council.

7.2.1n recognition of the need to respond to the new national and local agendas,
make efficiencies and meet the future needs of Haringey, in July CEMB and CAB,
agreed that the new model for the Council’s policy and performance functions will
be a centralised shared service to be known as the Strategic Planning and
Support Unit. It will include the functions below:

e Strategic Planning — policy, research, cohesion (including equalities),
partnerships and scrutiny

e Business Intelligence — performance management and systems support, data
and needs analyses, data quality and customer insight

7.3. The attached paper is based on that agreement and sets out a proposed model
and associated efficiencies for streamlining these functions.

Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1. The Chief Financial Officer has reviewed the proposals in this report with the
author.

8.2.The current cost of this service is approximately 94% funded from LBH core and
6% external grant funding; the latter is largely all within PPP&C. Estimated

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 7

savings have been made against the current cost of provision regardless of
funding source.

8.3. The costing of the proposed structure has been checked and should enable the
estimated cost saving to be realised on full implementation however, the actual
saving cannot be finalised until the formal consultation is completed.

8.4. The main operating costs (non-salary budget) requirement relates to training,
given the need for staff to be up to date on national and regional policy, and some
supplies and services in relation to production of statutory documents. A small
on-cost per post will be added to the salary budget before the budgets are
consolidated to ensure there is sufficient to create a viable service.

8.5.1t is currently expected that the one-off costs to achieve the centralised function
will be minimal and should be containable within existing budgets

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1. There are no specific legal implications concerning the model to be adopted by
the Council for policy and performance functions. The proposals set out in this
report are ones that fall within the remit of the Council’s policies concerning
organisational restructuring and redeployment in respect of the implications for
staff employed by the Council. Consideration should be given in order to confirm
the proposals for the appropriate pools for redundancy selection and the selection
criteria to be adopted. The proposals are at such a stage that statutory
consultation under the provisions of Section 188 of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992 should be undertaken, in addition to
appropriate consultation with the employees affected by the proposals. This
consultation should be carried out while the proposals are still at a formative stage
and where no final decision has been made.

10. Head of Procurement Comments
10.1. Not applicable

11. Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments

11.1. An Equalities Impact Assessment of the Policy and Performance SFR has
been carried out and it found no adverse effects in terms of equalities.

12. Consultation

12.1. Informal consultation has included:

e Three stakeholder workshops held during May and June 2010 to get the views of
both senior officers and staff delivering policy and performance functions

¢ Meetings with Directors and Assistant Directors to get their views

e During the first half of July 2010 meetings with staff working in functions covered

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 8

by the scope of the review on the proposed model.

12.2. The feedback from the informal consultation has been used to develop the
model described in the attached report.

12.3. Formal consultation will begin in September.

13. Service Financial Comments
13.1. not applicable

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
Appendix 1: The proposed model for Policy and Performance

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
15.1. Not applicable

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 9

X

=

Haringey

Appendix 1: Proposed model for policy and performance
functions in Haringey

1. Introduction

In February 2010 as part of the Support Functions Review (SFR), Chief
Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) agreed to review the organisation of
the policy and performance functions within the Council. On 15 July 2010
Cabinet Advisory Board (CAB) endorsed proposals to create a council wide
centralised shared service for the policy and performance functions. The report
below is based on that agreement and sets out a proposed model for
streamlining these functions.

2. Background information

2.1Responding to the new national and local agendas

To maximise our limited resources and deliver the new national and local
government agendas, evidenced based strategic planning and delivery of our
priorities is crucial. The key issues are:

e The increased focus on very local place shaping which requires robust
strategic planning; we are still required to produce a range of evidence
based statutory plans and strategies

e Whilst the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) has been abolished,
service inspections will continue e.g. this year the Care Quality Commission
(CQC) has added additional requirements for adult social care under
sections 48 and 54 of the Health and Social Care Act, through an intense
programme of special reviews and studies

e There remains a requirement to complete statistical returns, and public
services will be required to publish their performance in an accessible and
easy to understand way

e The National Indicator Data Set, Local Area Agreements (LAAs) and Local
Strategic Partnerships (locally known as the Haringey Strategic Partnership
- HSP) remain

e In the last year the range of statutory needs assessments has increased e.g.
Local Economic Assessment, Child Poverty Needs Assessment

e There continues to be a strong role for Overview and Scrutiny

2.2 Efficiencies

The Council has identified the need to make significant efficiencies in the period
2011- 2013 to meet an identified funding gap as set out in its Financial Strategy
for 2011-2014. At Cabinet Advisory Board (15 July 2010) Members gave a clear
indication that a 50% saving is expected from this review.

Page 1 of 9



Page 10

2.3 Meeting Haringey’s future needs

The Council will be going through a number of changes in the coming months
which will impact on its structure and functions. Support services will need to be
able to respond and enable these changes.

3. Scope of the proposed model
3.1 Determining the scope of the review

i) Defining who does policy and performance
The following steps were taken to get the most accurate picture possible of the
numbers of staff carrying out policy and performance activities across the
Council:
e Consideration of the initial SFR activity analysis completed for all support
functions in 2009
e Discussions were held with Directors/Assistant Directors
e Working knowledge of who undertakes policy and performance was drawn
on
e Analysis of the full and most up to date list of employees from SAP to take
account of the recent validation exercise

ii) Benchmarking
Research amongst other local authorities showed that the majority have opted
or are opting for centralisation. The overall benefits sought are:

A single view of policy/performance
Holistic approach to strategic planning for outcomes
Single point of access for business intelligence

Flexible capacity to support services through transferable knowledge and
skills

e Efficiencies

iii) Initial workshops with key stakeholders

Three stakeholder workshops were held to get the views of both senior officers
and staff delivering policy and performance functions. A summary of the key
attributes required from policy and performance functions is shown below:

e Be analytical experts with high levels of capability

e Act as internal consultants

¢ Maintain specialist knowledge and be able to fit local service work and
statistics into central picture

e Provide better business intelligence and analysis for the whole Council

3.2 The proposed model for policy and performance functions

Following discussions at CAB and CEMB it was agreed that the new model for
the Council’s policy and performance functions will be a centralised shared
service to be known as the Strategic Planning and Support Unit.

It will include the functions below:

Page 2 of 9




Page 11

e Strategic Planning — policy, research, cohesion (including equalities),
partnerships and scrutiny

e Business Intelligence — performance management and systems
support, data and needs analyses, data quality and customer insight

3.3 Criteria for functions to be included in the new unit

In deciding which functions should be undertaken by the new unit, a distinction
is made between strategic and operational policy.

Strategic policies set out a high-level approach to an issue that is designed to
deliver change.

Operational policies are defined as those providing a framework for service
delivery; they enable the consistent application and interpretation of legislation
and strategic policy.

Strategic policies/strategies and high level information analysis will be
undertaken by the centralised function whilst operational policies and data input
and processing remains within the services.

Following discussions with Directors and Assistant Directors the criteria below
have been used to compile the list of posts to be included in this review.

Inclusions

Those responsible for:

e Functions included in the SFR definitions of policy and performance (see Annexe 1)

e Strategic statutory plans, strategies and statistical returns

e Strategic non statutory plans, strategies and performance e.g. Greenest Borough
Strategy and recycling data

e Equalities policy and strategy

e HSP support

The following areas are also included in the review:

¢ Information governance — it is proposed that this function is covered by the
Feedback Team

e Scrutiny support

e Social care system development team (Framework-i)

Exclusions

Those responsible for:

e The delivery of policies, plans and strategies

e Operational policies, strategies and data input e.g. Organisational Development
and Human Resources policies, strategies and data; IT strategy; finance

e Procurement policies and strategies (as per SFR definitions)

e Business Development and other support posts such as those heavily involved in
admin or finance (they will be included in future rounds of the SFR)

e The Local Area Agreement (LAA) and Area Based Grant monitoring officers who
will become part of the Strategy Management Office

e Agenda setting for thematic partnership boards — to be led by Directors’ Offices as
capacity remains within the services

3.4 Issues relating to the scope raised during informal consultation with
staff and senior managers

Page 3 of 9




Page 12

During the first half of July 2010, informal consultation was carried out with staff
and management on the proposed model. It has highlighted that adjustments to
the scope must be considered if the new function is to work effectively and the
efficiencies achieved. The following issues were raised:

4,

Synergy and close links need to be maintained between the performance
function and systems to support the development and improvement of
performance reports e.g. Framework-i, OHMS, CRM, and SAP.

Benchmarking shows that systems support is located with performance and
this will fit with the proposal to create a business intelligence capacity for the
council. It is proposed that Framework-i development work is incorporated
within the new Business Intelligence function as it is closely linked with social
care performance management.

The scope to include the independent investigation stage of complaints in
line with the original SFR definition. A review of complaints is being
undertaken separately.

Although the original SFR definition included consultation, it has been
decided that a review of this function will be undertaken separately.

Functions of the new Unit

The Strategic Planning and Support Unit will actively support front line services
and provide the business intelligence to set strategic priorities and agree
commissioning intentions. The key functions will be:

4.1 Strategic Planning

Lead on the development of statutory and key strategic council and
partnership documents e.g. Equalities Duty Scheme, Sustainable
Community Strategy

Ensure linkages between policy areas and across thematic partnerships
Produce the Borough Profile and contribute to statutory and other needs
analyses to inform strategic commissioning

Provide guidance and work with services to ensure the Council meets its
Equalities Public Duties

Provide policy and strategy guidance and support to Directorates on
operational policies, strategies and plans

Ensure that a strategic corporate perspective is integrated within
operational policies, strategies and plans

Assist services in the preparation for inspections and statutory returns
Provide efficient and effective support to ensure the operation of the HSP
and its sub groups

Co-ordinate research and policy support to Overview and Scrutiny
Provide support to the Council’s research governance framework

Page 4 of 9



Page 13

4.2 Business Intelligence

Carry out high level trend analysis and projections to inform needs
assessments, policy, commissioning and service delivery

Establish a customer insight function

Provide performance information and reports to Directorate Management
Teams, CEMB, Members and the HSP through agreed reporting cycles
Carry out data quality audits and challenge performance and practice
where necessary and as a result trigger improvement action

Carry out systematic and ongoing benchmarking

Ensure improvement work is undertaken where appropriate and as agreed
with services

Input to inspections and statistical returns for the Council and HSP
Attend meetings with regulators as required by services

Publish performance information

Enable the development of Framework-i to support performance
management and social work practice

5.

The way of working

To deliver the above functions within a much reduced capacity a different way of
working is needed. The new unit will be a council-wide shared resource that will
work flexibly across organisational boundaries and within a one council
approach.

The key determinants to ensure the success of this approach are to:

Agree annual Strategic Planning and Business Intelligence work plans at
CEMB

Appoint identified Officers with specialist knowledge to provide close links to
services

Enable officers to be linked to a service but with flexibility to support the
Council and HSP as required

Ensure that resource allocation to services is risk based and directed to
where the Council needs to focus its efforts to improve services. The
strongest resources will be allocated to the service that needs the highest
level of support

The Head of the Strategic Planning and Support Unit would be answerable
to both the relevant Director as well as the Chief Executive

Page 5 of 9




Page 14

6. Options for consideration

6.1 The proposed model

The table below shows the current number of posts and costs, and those for the
proposed model based on the recommendations from Cabinet Advisory Board
requiring 50% efficiency.

Proposed
Function Current Structure Centralised Change
Structure
Number Cost Number Cost % %
of posts £ of posts £ posts Cost
Policy 36* 1,824,881 14* 803,977 61 56
Performance 40 1,744,889 19 991,865 53 43
Total 76 3,569,770 33 1,795,842 57 50

* Excludes Scrutiny posts

There is a 57% reduction in the number of posts and a 50% reduction in cost
between the current and proposed structure. A small on-cost per post will be
added to the salary budget before the budgets are consolidated to ensure there
is sufficient to create a viable service.

Annexe 2 shows the proposed staffing arrangements. This shared resource
will provide strategic planning and business intelligence support to the
whole council and the HSP. The Scrutiny function is included in the diagram
as the resource will contribute to delivering economies of scale.

Annexe 3 provides details of the current staffing levels in each directorate which
are included in the review.

6.2 Risks

The proposed model set out in this paper is a much reduced structure which will
result in the need to develop and agree a detailed service offer between the
Chief Executive’s Service and other Directorates. The capacity of the Council to
retain specialist knowledge and respond to new national and local agendas as
well as ad hoc requests will be diminished. It is therefore proposed that the
arrangements are reviewed within a year of implementation.

7. Proposed timetable

7.1 Next steps
An indicative timescale for the implementation of the proposed model is shown
below.

Activity Timescale
Discussion with Directors and Assistant July — August 2010
Directors to finalise the service offer
An Equalities Impact Assessment carried out July- September 2010
Formal consultation From September 2010
General Purposes Committee 23 September 2010
Implementation date March 2011
First year review of new function March/April 2012

Page 6 of 9




Page 15

Annexe1: SFR Activity definitions relating to Policy and
Performance

Activity Definition

Strategy and Policy | Determining the future direction and objectives for the
council and the specific policies needed to support
achievement of this. Would include strategic planning
and policies at a community planning, council and
service level.

Note procurement strategy is under Procurement and
Commissioning. Health and Safety Strategy is included
under Health and Safety.

Research and Undertaking research and consultation activity in
Consultation support of strategy and policy development.

QA, Performance Evaluation, maintenance and development of quality
Management and against standards and service performance targets and
Improvement the initiation of change/improvement activities e.g.

Internal process improvement teams (maybe including
some internal audit), Actioning customer feedback
about services including complaints, Independent
reviews of services e.g. Child protection, Care
Assessment, Inspection of facilities e.g. swimming
pools.

Identifying Key Performance Indicators (KPIs),
Performance reporting, Comprehensive Performance
Assessment (CPA)" process, Joint Area Review (JAR)
process etc. Developing the performance management
regime.

This does not include staff performance management
which is included under Management and Supervision.

Business Gathering, analysing, reporting and interpreting
Information and business data and performance. Includes the
Reporting development of any standard / bespoke reports, trend

analysis and recommendations.

This is the actual collation of data rather than the
decision on the information to be collated.

1 . .
No longer in existence Page 7 of 9



Annexe 2: Proposed staffing arrangements: Strategic Planning and Support Unit - Strategic Planning & Business Intelligence

N.B. Indicative grades
subject to evaluation

Head of Strategic Planning and Support Unit

Business Intelligence

Strategic Planning
(Policy Research Cohesior (including

(Performance management Date & needs analyses

equalities) Partnerships and Scrutiny)

Data quality and Customer insight)

Strategic Planning Manager
(to be evaluatec)

4 Principal Policy Officers
(PO6-8)

12 Policy Officers
(PO1-3, PO4-5)

(Flexibility for staff to work
across policy, partnerships,
scrutiny and equalities)

Responsible for:

Working with services and partners to develop cross cutting and key
strategic plans and strategies

Providing guidance and support on policy & strategy development for
Council & HSP

Developing and reviewing Equalities Policy, implementing equalities public
duties and promoting cohesion

Supporting the Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP)

Undertaking scrutiny reviews

Supporting Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Responding to Councillor Call for Action

Undertaking Horizon Scanning / Research

Producing service specific & cross cutting Policy Bulletir / Policy Briefings
Supporting inspections and preparing statutory returns

Co-ordinating responses to government consultations

Supporting the Council’s research governance framework

Business Intelligence
Manager
(to be evaluatec)

-~

-

~

Performance Manager
(PO7-8)

/

G Senior Performance Officea

4 Information Analysts

1 Senior Performance Officer (PO4-6)

(Data Quality) 2 GIS Officers

\\ (POA1 -6) / (PO4-6) *
/ 4 x Performance Officers * In the future this team will also
(PO1 - 3) include Public Health analysts.
2 x Data Quality Officers
(Sc6-S01)

-

Responsible for:

Producing projections and trends analyses for service demand
Producing demographic and GIS information

Establishing and maintaining the Data observatory

Analysing customer insight information

Performance Management & Reporting

Publication of performance information including the National indicators
Preparing statutory statistical returns

Undertaking data quality audits

Managemeni & maintenance of Covalent & GIS systems
Independent investigation of Feedback, Complaints, Data Protection,
Freedom of Information, Data Governance

Systems development & improvement of performance reports for
Framework-i

Jointly produce needs assessments and Borough Profile information to underpin commissioning

Page 8 of 9

9} abed



Annexe 3: Current staffing levels in each directorate

Page 17

Policy Performance
Directorate Number of | Number of
posts posts
Corporate Resources 0 0
Urban Environment 11 8
Adult, Culture and 4 5
Community Services
Children and Young 6 14
People Services
People and 1 0
Organisational
Development
Performance, Policy, 15 9
Partnerships and
Communication
TOTAL 37 36

Page 9 of 9



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19 Agenda Item 6

NHS|

Commissioning Support for London

London cancer services:
Proposed model of care

Summary




Page 20

Contents

Foreword from the project board

Foreword from the patient panel

London cancer services: a proposed model of care
The nature of the challenge

Guiding principles of the proposed model of care
Networks

Early diagnosis

Common cancers and general care

Rarer cancers and specialist care

Patient experience

Enablers

Cancer co-dependencies

Financial assessment

A new way of delivering care
Acknowledgements

Glossary

Notes

10
12
14
17
21
27
33
35
38
43
44
46
54
57



Page 21

Foreword from the project board

In some way, cancer will likely touch the lives of every person in
London. With around 13,600 deaths from cancer in the capital
each year and the number of new cases expected to rise,
London needs world-class cancer services to meet this major
challenge.

The case for change provides a compelling set of arguments

for the need to improve cancer services in London. London’s
cancer community has developed a proposed model of care

that recommends robust, clinically-led solutions to enable
improvements to be made in the capital’s cancer services. If
adopted by London’s commissioners, its recommendations
would help earlier diagnoses to be made, improve inpatient care,
and reduce inequalities in access to and uptake of services,

all with the ultimate aims of improving patient experiences and
outcomes.

The proposed model of care recommends that high quality care
should be delivered by provider networks to allow the sharing
of best practice and drive improvements in cancer services. It
recommends that commissioners should commission services
from provider networks and not necessarily from individual
organisations, ensuring that pathways and best practice are
standardised.

Professor Sir Mike Richards CBE, National Cancer Director has
said:

‘I commend all those who have been involved in the London
cancer services review. The model of care sets out a forward
looking approach to the early diagnosis, treatment and aftercare
of Londoners with cancer. Collaborative working should be
encouraged through the proposed new arrangements for provider
networks. Implementation of this model of care would enable



Page 22

London to acquire the world class services it deserves.”

Ensuring the future availability of world-class cancer services for
all Londoners is at the heart of model of care. If it were adopted
by commissioners then its implementation will most certainly
contribute to improving survival rates to meet the best in Europe
and could translate into saving 1,000 Londoners’ lives per

year. Achieving earlier diagnosis has the greatest potential for
improving outcomes and survival for cancer patients in London
and so is deserving of particular attention.

We would like to thank the many individuals and organisations
that helped us develop the case for change and proposed model
of care for London’s cancer services through our work with
primary and secondary care professionals, service users, and
independent and third sector partners.

(ifu G vor~

Chief Executive, Sutton and Merton Primary Care Trust and
Senior Responsible Officer

Jofe

Professor of Cancer Medicine at Queen Mary, University of
London and Clinical Lead



Page 23

Foreword from the patient panel

The patient panel was formed of patients, carers, relatives and
researchers. Its two co-chairs were members of the project
board, representing patients’ and carers’ views and championing
their interests. The panel worked to ensure that the overarching
issues and principles that dominated their discussions informed
the cancer project board when producing the case for change
and model of care documents.

Londoners expect the best quality of care. Despite areas of
excellence in cancer care across London, the capital still has
poorer survival outcomes than most European countries.
The cancer case for change and model of care documents
have shown that London scores poorly in clinical outcomes
and survivorship data compared to other areas of Britain and
countries in Europe.

Londoners expect an increased emphasis on public awareness
about cancer symptoms and problems associated with delays in
early diagnosis. Social marketing and further research should be
used to analyse the best methods for engaging patients early in
the diagnostic pathway or in screening programmes to improve
outcomes.

To help achieve better outcomes, we acknowledge that it will be
necessary to consolidate some cancer care in fewer specialist
centres. This will increase travelling times for some patients, but
it will improve patient care and cancer treatment outcomes. We
understand that the ultimate goal is to deliver high quality of care
and quality of life.

While we think that the people of London will acknowledge the
need to travel further for the best specialist care, they will expect
to have transport needs considered. Certain treatments make
patients unwell and immunologically compromised and attempts



Page 24

to alleviate problems encountered due to public transport would
be invaluable.

Londoners expect to have a joined up pathway of care
throughout their treatment, with care to be delivered closer to
their home, where appropriate. Patients should be transferred
back for ongoing or follow-up care in local providers or the
community as soon as is practicable following care at the
specialist centres.

Patients should be informed of all treatment options and
outcomes at every stage of their journey to ensure that they are
involved in shared and informed decision making.

The people of London expect a holistic approach to their care
and for their carers to be acknowledged as partners in their
care and to be appropriately supported with communication,
information and professional help as needed.

Londoners also expect to have a designated keyworker
throughout their journey. Keyworkers, often clinical nurse
specialists, are crucial to achieving seamless care for patients,
both in the acute setting and importantly when they return home.
They prevent feelings of abandonment and act as a contact for
advice and reassurance.

The members of the panel consider the invitation to contribute
this foreword as an indication of the close working partnership
that we have had with the cancer project board and the clinical
expert groups. We thank the expert reference groups and the
cancer project board members for the opportunity to engage and
inform from a patient and public perspective.

We are pleased that a number of our suggestions have led to
significant changes in the documents and hope that such input
will have a positive impact on the patient experience. We look



Page 25

forward to improvements in cancer treatment and survival for all
in London.

Natalie Teich and Virginia Gorna
Co-chairs of the cancer patient panel



Page 26

1. London cancer services: a proposed model of care

London’s cancer community has come together to propose
changes to cancer services in the capital. This document makes
both a compelling argument for service change, and sets out an
ambitious way forward for cancer services that will deliver better
outcomes and a better experience for patients.

A thorough case for change for cancer services in the capital has
been developed as well as a proposed model of care if the case
for change was accepted.

The proposed model of care was developed by London’s cancer
clinicians and is a clinical document. Its recommendations are
based on the available literature and evidence from academic
sources as well as pilots and innovative initiatives. Where
evidence was not available, recommendations are based on

the consensus of the nationally and internationally renowned
clinicians that London is fortunate to have.

Applications for involvement in the process were sought from
London’s cancer community and 130 were received. Three
expert reference groups were formed, one for each of the three
workstreams involved: early diagnosis, common cancers and
general care, and rarer cancers and specialist care.

Each group consisted of 15-18 individuals from a range of
professions and joint chairs were chosen from among its
members. The groups met at monthly intervals and were
engaged with frequently in between times, both individually and
as a group, to provide further evidence and clinical input to the
development of the documents.



Page 27

An overarching panel was formed from the six co-chairs of the
expert reference groups along with the clinical lead and other
senior figures from London’s cancer community. This group

met monthly following the expert reference group meetings to
review progress and ensure that the work of the three groups
was closely aligned. Clinical experts from outside of the Greater
London area were also asked to comment on the case for
change and proposed model of care at intervals throughout the
process.

The patient panel included patient representatives from London’s
five cancer networks and other groups. The patient panel also
met on a monthly basis and provided invaluable feedback on,
and input into, the two documents. The two co-chairs of the
patient panel also sat on the cancer project board.

The project board was chaired by the senior responsible office
and its membership consisted of the clinical lead, the six co-
chairs of the expert reference groups, the two patient panel
co-chairs, public health and strategic representatives from NHS
London, and Commissioning Support for London’s executive
Sponsor.

An engagement event was held in November 2009 to share and
seek feedback on the draft case for change and emerging model
of care. The event was attended by over 120 people, including
patients and a range of clinicians and third sector organisations.
The feedback from the event was fed into the project documents.

Telephone interviews were held with senior representatives of
four leading cancer centres in the USA. The purpose was to gain



Page 28

insights into their cancer care models, to compare them with
the proposals made in this document and to consider whether
anything more could be helpfully proposed for London.

10



Page 29

2. The nature of the challenge

London’s cancer services should meet the highest standards of
care. Clinical management in the capital is usually provided by
nationally and internationally recognised experts. However, the
lack of a planned system for coordinating the delivery of services
means that London cannot consistently achieve the excellence
achieved in other comparable cities.

London has particular challenges and characteristics in terms of
population demographics and cancer services provision.

Londoners have historically reported a poorer experience of
cancer care when compared with other regions of England.
Differences have particularly related to community and hospital
services, and the interface between them.

There is significant variation in the incidence, survival and
mortality rates for cancer patients across London. The risk of
being diagnosed with certain cancers is greater among the most
deprived families and communities. For the majority of cancers,
the most deprived patients have worse survival rates'. London
has a high level of deprivation with 20% of wards being some of
the most deprived in the countryz.

London’s cancer services provide a significant amount of
cancer care, particularly for rarer cancers, to patients living
outside London in Kent, Surrey and Sussex, parts of Essex and
Hertfordshire, and further afield.

The incidence of cancer nationally is predicted to increase by
33% by 2022, while in London it is only expected to rise by five
per cent’.

11



Page 30

However, these patients coming from outside London to receive
treatment in the capital come from a growing population and will
further increase the demand on London’s services.

High turnover, high vacancy rates, and lower labour productivity
are some of London’s unique workforce challenges. London
doctors and nurses see relatively fewer patients than those
working elsewhere in England.

The spread of London’s cancer services is the result of historical
development at various hospital sites. This has taken place
without a framework to consider how services could fit into

an overarching system that can best serve the entire London
population.

Insufficient planning across London means services do not make
the most efficient use of a limited and highly skilled workforce.
As a result, Londoners have not fully benefited from advances in
medical care as specialist staff, facilities and patients are spread
across too many sites.

The numerous high quality research active providers in London
present the opportunity to support local involvement in cancer
biomedical research, and increase participation in clinical trials
for patients who might otherwise not have ready access to them.

12



Page 31

3. Guiding principles of the proposed model of care

Over the last decade, considerable improvements in cancer care
have been achieved in London but more needs to be done. A
new model of care is needed for London’s cancer services in
order to improve patient experiences and treatment outcomes.

This model of care is presented to commissioners by London’s
cancer community as a proposal for how services should be
delivered in the future. It will be for commissioners to determine
how and from whom they wish to commission services on behalf
of their patients.

The proposed model of care is underpinned by ten guiding

principles:

1. Services should provide informed choice, quality outcomes
and a high quality experience for cancer patients

2. Patients should be at the centre of services, which will be
based on patient pathways and will be commissioned to meet
their needs

3. Services should aim to exceed national, regional, and local
care and quality standards, such as the NICE improving
outcomes guidance, and national policies including the
Cancer Reform Strategy4

4. Health services should be delivered locally where this is
clinically appropriate and delivers value for money

5. Healthcare should be delivered close to home and in

ambulatory care settings where possible, avoiding or reducing

the need for patients to attend or be admitted to hospital

Services should be centralised where clinically appropriate

Tertiary, secondary, and primary care services should work

closely together, with partners such as local authorities, to

provide more cohesive and better care for cancer patients

8. Services should deliver improved outcomes for cancer
patients while being productive and providing value for money
for taxpayers

No



Page 32

9. Services should meet the needs of the populations they serve
and be innovative and continually evolving

10. Cancer research, both basic and clinical, should be strongly
supported and fostered.

14



Page 33

4. Networks

Cancer networks in their current form were set up following the
publication of the NHS Cancer Plan in 2000°. There are currently
five London cancer networks.

The strengths of the cancer networks should be consolidated and
embedded within commissioning structures. Their weaknesses
must be addressed to tackle the issues identified in the case for
change.

While significant progress has been made since 2000,
considerable variation still exists in cancer services across
London. Despite the efforts of the existing cancer networks, the
constraints of the system in which they operate have prevented
them from eliminating this variation.

The role of networks should be redefined to address three critical

issues:

* The need to clarify the commissioning role of networks

* The ability of both commissioners and providers to respond to
the agenda for cancer services

* The need to work in a way that is more collaborative from
an NHS perspective and more coherent from a patient
perspective.

To address these issues, London’s cancer services should move
to a model of clearly delineated commissioning arrangements
and provider networks.

The role of the existing cancer network management teams
should be redefined as ‘cancer commissioning networks’

and focus solely on supporting the commissioning of high
quality services. By refocusing their role to provide support to

15



Page 34

commission cancer services of the highest quality, the expertise
of the network management teams will not be lost.

To address the problems of fragmentation highlighted in the
case for change, cancer commissioning should be on the basis
of patient pathways rather than individual organisations. The
London Specialised Commissioning Group should continue to
drive the commissioning of the rarer cancer services that need to
be planned and organised across the whole population.

Provider networks would be groups of providers commissioned

collectively to provide a comprehensive cancer service. They

should:

« Be clinically led, with a governance board that will comprise
representatives from each provider and a commissioning lead

* Have responsibility for delivering the specified care pathways
for different tumour sites developed by clinicians and cancer
commissioning teams

» Be integrated to include providers at each step of the
pathway, including the community

* Function as an integrated, actively managed, single entity,
taking responsibility for governance of all cancer patients
within the network

* Make clinicians available to advise commissioners at all levels

« Link with high quality cancer research institutions to ensure
that research is embedded with patient care.

The proposed model of care does not state the optimum future
number of provider networks for the capital. Their configuration
should be determined as the model of care’s recommendations
are implemented, particularly those regarding the consolidation of
specialist surgery.

The final number of provider networks will be influenced by a
number of factors, including population coverage, cancer activity,
and the chance to link with existing collaborative arrangements

16



Page 35

such as the three new Health Innovation and Education Clusters.
It is expected that this will result in fewer networks than at
present.

17



Page 36

5. Early diagnosis

The earlier a cancer is diagnosed and treated, the greater a
patient’s chance of survival and improved quality of life. Evidence
suggests that later diagnosis has been a major factor in causing
the relative poorer survival rates in England compared with other
European countries®.

Achieving earlier diagnosis has the greatest potential for
improving outcomes and survival for cancer patients in London.
Improving survival rates in England7 to the best in Europe could
save an estimated 1,000 lives per year in London.

Public awareness of the early signs and symptoms of cancer

is poor in England. Findings suggest differences between
population groups in both the level of awareness of cancer signs
and symptoms, and in the public’s perceived barriers to care®.

Late presentation is a contributing factor to a more advanced
stage of cancer at the time of diagnosis. Figure 1 shows evidence
that patients frequently have symptoms for a considerable period
of time before seeking help.

Commissioners should:

* Ensure that the initiatives of the National Awareness and
Early Diagnosis Initiative (NAEDI) are implemented

* Use the Cancer Awareness Measure to assess cancer
awareness levels in their local population

* Have clear strategies for improving awareness levels
amongst the public and increasing early presentation.

GPs should participate in the primary care national audit of
newly-diagnosed cancers to gain an understanding of any pre-
diagnostic delays that take place. GPs with an interest in cancer
should lead efforts to increase awareness and understanding and

18



Page 37

therefore early diagnosis.

Figure 1: TIme from patients noticing and reporting symptoms to GPs and
time from patients reporting symptoms to GP referral to secondary care.

Cancer

Breast
Lung

Upper gastrointestinal (Gl)

Colorectal

Melanoma

Prostate

0 20 40 60 80 100

Number of days

Il Time from noticing symptoms to reporting symptoms [l Time from noticing symptoms to referral

Source: Scottish Government, Better Cancer Care, An Action Plan, 2008

Cancer can be difficult to diagnose in its early stages, particularly
as GPs see fewer than ten new cancer cases per year on
averageg. This can potentially lead to delays in GP investigations
or referrals to a specialist.

Prompt access to appropriate diagnostics and referral to
specialists is fundamental to ensure an early diagnosis of cancer.

The majority of newly diagnosed cancer patients do not come
through the two-week referral route. Clear protocols are needed
for acting on the receipt of abnormal results for patients who
have a low suspicion of cancer.

Inappropriate urgent referrals can lead to cancer services being
overloaded, causing delays for patients referred non-urgently
who turn out to have cancer.

19



Page 38

Allowing GPs rapid access to diagnostics to exclude or confirm
a diagnosis of cancer will allow patients to be appropriately and
accurately referred to specialist care earlier. Patients should not
have long waits for these tests or their results.

The accuracy of referrals to secondary care should be improved
and clear protocols for acting on the receipt of abnormal results
in secondary care should be established. Specialist cancer
diagnostic teams should be strengthened to expedite an accurate
diagnosis.

London has a lower uptake rate of NHS screening programmes
than the rest of the country and national minimum targets are
largely not met.

Figure 2 illustrates the lack of progress in increasing breast
screening uptake in London over recent years. The national
minimum target for breast screening uptake is 70%.

Figure 2: Breast screening uptake rates10

2005/06 2006/07 2007/08
Number 271,922 285,808 279,515
invited
Number 181,494 184,395 181,606
screened
Uptake rate |61.79% 60.31% 60.54%

The evidence shows that there are a range of factors that

contribute to a low uptake of screening in London:
» Lower uptake rates in areas with high levels of deprivation
* Alack of understanding by some people of the benefits of

screening
20




Page 39

» Asignificant number of people in hard-to-reach groups are
less likely to accept their screening invites

» The transient nature of certain populations has resulted in
inflated, conflicting and out-of-date patient lists

* Problems with GP catchment areas result in patients being
called to screening services in the wrong borough

* There is no standard IT system to support call and recall
centres.

The public should be made more aware of the benefits of cancer
screening programmes. Programmes should be expanded and
more widely promoted to increase rates of early diagnosis. New
technology should also be introduced where appropriate to
enhance screening.

Factors such as age, gender, ethnicity, sexual orientation,
learning disabilities and mental health problems can result in
inequalities in access to, and outcomes of, cancer care.

The routine collection of patient data by ethnicity, age, gender
and disability would enable commissioners to understand the
uptake of cancer services. The health inequalities identified can
then be addressed locally.

Questions to consider

1. Do you agree with the case for change and proposed model
of care for early diagnosis?

2. Do you agree that achieving earlier diagnosis has the greatest
potential for improving outcomes and survival?

3. Do you have any comments on the proposals?

4. How should the proposed changes be brought about?

21



Page 40

6. Common cancers and general care

Survival rates for common cancers in London compare
unfavourably with those internationally. There is variation in the
quality of care that Londoners receive for common cancers and
variation in the quality of the general care that all cancer sufferers
receive. This variation is in the treatment that patients receive

as well as the length of time that they can expect to spend in
hospital. Reducing this variation will improve both outcomes and
patient experience.

Relative survival rates for three common cancers, breast, colon
and lung, are shown in Figure 3.

Figure 3: London - relative survival rates for three common cancers

US average

EU average
England average
West London
North London
North east London
South east London

South west London

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 0 10 20

Breast Colon Lung

Five year survival rates (%)

Source: National Statistics for Cancers diagnosed 1997-1999 and Eurocare for cancers diagnosed 1996-1999, followed up to 31 December 2004.

Clinical evidence suggests that common cancer care such as
chemotherapy and patient follow-up should be provided outside
of hospital settings where possible. The evidence also makes the
case for improving outcomes by providing complex investigations
and treatments in only a few specialist centres. All non-hospital

22



Page 41

based services should be integrated with other services in the
provider network. This would ensure that services are high
quality and as safe as possible.

Number of services

For some common cancers, a large number of London hospitals
carry out surgery and the number of procedures that are carried
out each year varies widely between hospitals.

An accreditation scheme should be developed that takes into
account patient outcomes, the number of procedures carried
out annually and other important factors that contribute to the
quality of patient care. Only accredited hospitals should be
commissioned to provide services.

The proposed model of care does not state an ideal number of
services to provide breast and colorectal cancer. The number
of providers in the capital will be determined by commissioning
and patient choice, informed by cancer quality accounts and the
accreditation process.

To ensure that London hospitals see sufficient number of
bladder and prostate cancer patients, the number of hospitals
commissioned to provide this service should be reduced from the
current level of more than ten providers to five. These hospitals
should seek to carry out a minimum cumulative total of 100
complex operations a year.

Evidence suggests that the best lung cancer outcomes are
achieved in centres performing more than 60 procedures per
year”. To ensure that London hospitals see sufficient patients
to make this possible, the number of hospitals commissioned to
provide this service should be reduced from seven to five.

23



Page 42

Breast cancer surgery can often be delivered as a day case, with
surgeons using less invasive techniques so that patients do not
have to stay in hospital unnecessarily. Guidelines suggest that
63% of breast surgery should be as a day case. The case for
change showed that the proportion of breast procedures carried
out in this way in London hospitals varied from under 20% to over
90%.

To improve outcomes and experience, day case breast services
should be available locally to all patients who require less
complex surgery. Patients undergoing more complex surgery
should have the opportunity to discuss their breast reconstruction
options and have immediate breast reconstruction if appropriate.

The increased use of laparoscopic surgery in treating colorectal
cancers has been approved by NICE but is not widely available
in London hospitals, with rates ranging from under 5% to almost
50% of total colon procedures. All colorectal teams should
therefore include at least one fully trained laparoscopic surgeon
and non-complex colorectal cancer surgery should be available
to patients locally.

Some London services for patients with high-risk skin cancer,
such as malignant melanoma, do not meet NICE guidelines12.
They should be consolidated to achieve this.

In addition, some GPs undertake the diagnosis and management
of low-risk skin cancers when they are not trained to do so.

Providers of care for haematological cancers in London should
adopt the recommendations made by the British Society for
Haematology, which includes defining the facilities and resources
required to deliver haematological care of different levels™.

24



Page 43

SACT (which includes chemotherapy) is provided predominantly
in acute hospitals in London. This means that patients frequently
have to travel for treatment, sometimes with considerable travel
times and often when feeling unwell.

Guidelines recommend that to provide patient-centred care,
inpatient delivery of SACT should be minimised'*. To do this,
satellite services should be set up and linked to a central unit in
the provider network to provide more convenient treatment to
patients, as long as it is safe and clinically appropriate to do so.

London providers have enough radiotherapy capacity if it is
used efficiently. Inequalities of access exist, however, with wide
variations in the distances that patients are required to travel for
care.

There are also variations in the radiotherapy regimen given
to patients across the capital and a lower proportion of
patients overall receive radiotherapy compared with national
recommendations'°.

Furthermore, the London Assembly has reported that waiting
times in a third of London’s radiotherapy providers exceed

national waiting time targets16.

These issues could be addressed by commissioning radiotherapy
services on a pan-London basis. This would ensure that patient
flows are managed more efficiently across London and that high
safety and quality standards are in place. In this way, treatments,
regimens and maximum waiting times could be standardised
according to the best clinical evidence.



Page 44

A multidisciplinary team is made up of specialist practitioners
who advise on the best care pathway for patients. Reports reveal
that a significant number of London multidisciplinary teams are
not compliant with NICE guidance on the requirements of these
teams'’. Provider networks should standardise multidisciplinary
teams across providers to ensure that they work efficiently and
effectively and that clinical time is used appropriately.

Provider networks should also ensure that patient access to a
keyworker is always available through the multidisciplinary team.
Patient and carer involvement has shown that this role is of vital
importance for the quality of the overall patient experience.

There is scope for radical improvement in the use of London’s
cancer beds. Reducing long lengths of stay will improve patient
experience and have financial benefits. If all London hospitals
had achieved the national average for lengths of stay in 2004/05
for all cancer patients, this would have saved 800,000 bed days
or £200m’®.

The amount of time that patients spend in London hospitals after
elective cancer surgery varies widely. This variation is caused by
a number of factors, including the availability and quality of home
and community support, the surgical techniques used, and the
individual practice of clinicians.

Programmes to ensure that patients spend no longer than

they need in hospital should be used across all elective cancer
surgery. Less-invasive surgical techniques should be used where
clinically appropriate to improve patient experience and the
speed of recovery.

National guidance recommends that hospitals with emergency
departments should establish teams to assess cancer patients

26



Page 45

presenting as an emergency the moment that they arrive at
hospital19. Currently not all London emergency departments
have such teams. The development of these acute oncology
services will prevent unnecessary hospital admissions, improving
both patient outcomes and experience.

The follow-up of most cancer patients is done on a routine basis
in hospital outpatient departments.

Patients can become ill again between appointments and not feel
able to see a specialist until their next scheduled appointment.
Londoners should be offered individualised aftercare services
based on the emerging survivorship model?’. This method of
follow-up will improve outcomes and quality of life for patients
and could free up specialists’ time to continue to improve quality
of care for all patients across the capital.

Patients should be given relevant information to make an
informed choice on their preferred method of follow-up.

NICE guidance on supportive and palliative care?! has not yet
been fully implemented in London. As a result, Londoners do not
have timely access to treatments that ease their symptoms.

NICE guidance on supportive and palliative care”? should be met

across all of London. Commissioners should ensure that:

* Holistic assessments are part of the patient pathway,
including an assessment of psychological needs and the
support requirements of carers

» Patients are consulted on the development of a rehabilitation
care plan prior to treatment

» Palliative care and rehabilitation specialists form part of all
multidisciplinary teams

» Complex palliative interventions are performed at specialist

centres.
27



Page 46

Questions to consider

1.

B w

28

Do you agree with the case for change and proposed model
of care for common cancers and general care?

Do you agree that some elements of cancer care should be
available locally to patients?

Do you have any comments on the proposals?

How should the proposed changes be brought about?



Page 47

7. Rarer cancers and specialist care

For some rarer cancers, several London hospitals are providing
services for the relatively small number of cases seen in the
capital each year. Consolidating services into fewer hospitals
would create and maintain complete clinical environments that
can enable the delivery of best practice.

The clinical evidence shows a positive relationship between the
volume of patients that cancer services see and the outcomes
that they achieve.

Higher patient volumes also improve the research environment,
particularly for rarer cancers. There is evidence that cancer
patients who participate in clinical trials can have better
outcomes. Generally all patients treated in an environment that
undertakes clinical research do better, whether or not they are
part of a clinical trial.

Most NICE guidance for rarer cancers sets out minimum
populations that services should serve or minimum numbers of
surgical procedures that should be carried out each year. The
guidance also argues that each surgical team should see a
minimum number of patients each year to preserve its clinical
skills.

In striving to meet this guidance, some concentration of services
has occurred in London. The case for confining services to a
small number of specialist centres is no longer based only on
the volume and outcome relationship. Specialist centres are now
seen as vital for the maintenance of a clinical environment that
supports the delivery of best practice developments and fully
exploits future advances in knowledge and treatments.

In order to achieve world-class services, London services should

29



Page 48

serve optimal populations rather than just minimum populations.

Just as the evidence suggests that surgeons should perform

a minimum number of procedures a year, minimum caseloads
should be set for non-surgical specialists for each rarer tumour
type to ensure that their expertise is maintained.

For rarer cancers, specialist teams should be responsible for
assessing patient needs and recommending care plans. Provider
networks should ensure that the different aspects of these

care plans can be delivered close to the patient’'s home where
possible.

There has been a decline in the number of people requiring
upper gastrointestinal procedures in London due to
improvements in diagnostic imaging.

Not all hospitals in London are performing the number of
pancreatic cancer procedures that the NICE guidelines
recommend®.

Recommendations on minimum surgeon volumes for major
oesophago-gastric and hepato-pancreato-biliary (HPB)
procedures have been published24.

As well as meeting minimum surgical volumes, it is essential that
all patients with upper gastrointestinal cancer are cared for by
highly sophisticated clinical teams beyond surgery alone, who
are working in excellent facilities, possess multi-modality cancer
expertise, make a strong contribution to national and international
research, and offer access to clinical trials for patients.

Primary liver cancer is rare and most liver procedures occur due
to the spread of cancer from other sites. The National Liver Plan

30



Page 49

recommends that patients with primary liver cancer are managed
in centres that offer all treatment options or have appropriate
relationships to ensure that there is good local provision25.

To create the best clinical environment for upper gastrointestinal
cancer patients, London should commission:

* Four oesophago-gastric surgery providers

* Three integrated pancreas and liver (HPB) providers

While transplantation is only an option in a small minority of
liver cancer patients, those who may be suitable for a transplant
should be referred to a transplant unit as early as possible to be
assessed.

London has the right number of hospitals providing services for
testicular and penile cancer and these services meet the NICE
requirements%.

Some services are dependent on too small a number of
surgeons. To ensure the best patient outcomes and experience,
rarer urological services should have all of the requirements of
a high quality service, such as 24-hour access to interventional
radiology, appropriate consultant cover, and resident surgical
juniors.

Provider networks should ensure that hospitals with general
urology services are able to refer patients with complex needs to
specialist urology teams promptly.

NICE guidance stipulates that head and neck services should
serve populations exceeding one million. All surgery should

be provided by a specialist team in a designated centre, and
surgeons and their teams should manage a minimum of 100 new
cases a year’'.

31



Page 50

While services in London have made progress towards these
requirements, they have not been met by all hospitals providing a
head and neck service.

In order to improve outcomes, and because of the number of
different specialties involved in caring for head and neck cancer,
the number of hospitals commissioned to provide services in
London should reduce from eight to five. These five surgery
providers should deal with both upper aero-digestive tract (UAT)
and thyroid cancers.

Base of skull and pituitary tumours are rarer than other head
and neck cancers. To ensure that teams see the right number
of patients to maintain their skills and expertise these services
should be provided in two hospitals, both of which should be in
the same hospital as a head and neck service.

NICE guidance28 also states that local community based
rehabilitation teams must be provided for head and neck patients.
In London, these are in various stages of development and their
creation should be expedited to ensure that patients receive the
rehabilitation that they require.

Although London’s brain and CNS services meet the current
NICE requirements, services elsewhere in the country support
significantly larger populations. In addition, revised national
guidance is expected to increase the recommended populations
that should be served.

The number of brain and CNS cancer surgical service providers
commissioned should therefore be reduced from seven to

four. These should be in a major hospital with acute services
including neurosurgery, and neuro-oncology services should also
be located on these sites. Two of these hospitals should have
specialist spinal cord teams and these should also be collocated

32



Page 51

with the two centres that are recommended to provide base of
skull and pituitary tumours.

Supportive care and rehabilitation for brain and CNS cancer
services are of key importance and are not available across
London. Rapid access to appropriate neuro-rehabilitation closer
to home should be offered to support patients and aid their
recovery.

While progress has been made in implementing NICE
guidance?, fewer services in London managing higher volumes
of patients would allow more effective use of specialist resources.
The number of specialist gynaecological surgical services
commissioned should therefore be consolidated from six
hospitals to five.

There is variation in the average length of stay following
gynaecological procedures at hospitals in London and Londoners
with gynaecological cancer are not always offered access to
supportive care and reproductive medicine consultations.

A minimally invasive approach and programmes to reduce
unnecessary time in hospital should be offered to patients.
Patients should also be offered access to supportive care
services, which should address quality of life issues, including
preservation of fertility.

The two sarcoma centres in London see the number of patients
a year that is required in the NICE guidance30 and therefore no
change to the number of hospitals is recommended.

The communication between sarcoma services and other
teams treating the parts of the body where sarcomas may
occur is not always good. This means that patients may not be
referred to a sarcoma centre where they would be managed

33



Page 52

most appropriately. Protocols should be developed by provider
networks to ensure effective links between sarcoma services and
these other teams.

Haematopoietic progenitor cell transplantation (a type of bone
marrow transplant) is currently delivered by eight providers in
London. Some of these hospitals are not seeing sufficient patient
numbers and therefore services should be consolidated to five
providers, each undertaking a minimum of 100 new cases per
year.

To treat the most complex cancer cases, clinicians require a
range of diagnostic and treatment equipment to be available

in one place. This means locating sophisticated equipment in
centres employing experienced staff with all of the relevant
expertise. These centres must be set up to see enough patients
to justify the technology’s cost.

In addition, a centralised commissioning and planning structure
should be established in London for specialist radiotherapy,
with technologies concentrated in specialist centres where
appropriate.

Questions to consider

1. Do you agree with the case for change and proposed model
of care for rarer cancers and specialist care?

2. Do you agree that consolidating very specialist, low volume

cancer services into fewer hospitals would help achieve high

quality patient care and improved outcomes?

Do you have any comments on the proposals?

How should the proposed changes be brought about?

B w

34



Page 53

8. Patient experience

The cancer patient panel proved invaluable in ensuring that

the patient experience was kept central to the development

of the proposals. The patient panel developed a generic

patient pathway diagram to summarise some of the key
recommendations of the proposed model of care in an accessible
way.

The care pathway diagram in Figure 4 sets out the various parts
of the pathway. It outlines some of the key factors that influence
patient experience that the patient panel discussed: the centrality
of the keyworker and carer support, the survivorship agenda, and
care plan assessment. The patient panel felt it was important that
patients could exercise choice at each step of the pathway.

35



Page 54

91erdoidde
219ym
Buiusains

dn-mojjoy juawWleal) juaWleal) wea) - < [eAIB)R1 D
jodsag dn mojjo4 abeys 3saiy4 Kreuydpsipainin

»»»»»»»»A

A
b
e,

Y]
m

weubeip Aemyjed jaued juaned Jjaoue) i ainbi4



Page 55

9. Enablers

If it were adopted by commissioners, this proposed model of care
would require significant changes in the way that cancer services
in London are commissioned and delivered. Implementing it

would require the harnessing of a number of enablers for change.

Strong commissioning will be at the core of cancer services in
London. Commissioners will commission on the basis of high
quality patient pathways. Cancer commissioning will be informed
by clinical, patient and carer engagement.

This model would require significant change in commissioning
structures and organisational cultures. New contracting
arrangements would need to be made to reflect these changes.

Incentives should be in place to foster appropriate collaborative
behaviours and shared working. Providers should be encouraged
to offer the highest quality care by linking increases in payment to
specific quality goals.

The collection and publication of high quality performance
information is integral to the success of this proposed model of
care. London’s provider networks should publish consolidated
cancer quality accounts including a wide range of patient
satisfaction measures.

London’s NHS should use an accreditation process and
publication of cancer quality accounts to help implement the
recommendations in this proposed model of care, drive up
quality, and inform commissioners, patients and the public.

The implementation of this proposed model of care must have
the same level of clinical leadership that its development has
had.

37



Page 56

Provider networks should consider using formal partnership
models to support the sharing of learning and standardisation of
services.

While some aspects of this proposed model of care are based on
collaboration, patient choice and contestability should be retained
to drive up quality.

Research should be fully integrated with clinical care to provide
the highest quality cancer care possible for Londoners. One of
the key roles of the provider networks will be to disseminate best
practice where there is innovation in service provision.

Improved information technology will be crucial in ensuring that
patients experience seamless services, while being seen in the
most appropriate settings within the network.

Commissioners should ensure services are in place to give all
patients, families and carers the appropriate support at all stages
of the care pathway.

Delivering care in the future in the most appropriate settings
will require a programme of disinvestment in current models of
care and reinvestment in new ones, together with changes in
workforce.

Current providers will need to work together, and across
commissioning boundaries, to achieve the optimal and affordable
use of estates and facilities.

Implementation should be informed by international best practice.
Initial input from four leading centres in the USA shows that they
are very much in broad agreement with the proposals made in
the proposed model of care.

38



Page 57

Questions to consider

Do you agree that these are the key enablers of the proposed
model of care?
Do you have any comments on the enablers?

39



Page 58

10. Cancer co-dependencies

To support the implementation of the recommendations in the
proposed model of care, a framework of the co-dependencies
between certain cancer services was developed by the clinical
expert reference groups.

The proposed model of care recommends some further
consolidation of surgical services for both common and rarer
cancers. This would ensure that clinical environments are in
place to provide high quality care and improved outcomes for
Londoners. These recommendations are summarised in Figure 5.

40



Page 59

Figure 5: Number of sites recommended for cancer services in London

Specialist cancer service Proposed number of sites in
London

Specialist penile cancer 2

surgery

Sarcoma surgery 2

All oesophago-gastric cancer |4

surgery

All pancreatic cancer surgery |3 (operating as HPB centres)

Specialist testicular cancer 3

surgery

All brain and CNS cancer 4

surgery

All liver cancer surgery 3 (operating as HPB centres)

Lung cancer surgery 5

Specialist head and neck 5

cancer surgery

Specialist bladder and prostate |5

and renal surgery

Specialist gynaecological 5

cancer surgery

HPC transplants 5

Colorectal cancer surgery Undefined number of sites

Breast cancer surgery Undefined number of sites

As the proposed model of care makes recommendations for each
tumour type as a separate entity, a further piece of work was
needed to identify the co-dependencies between services for
different cancers.

The purpose of the cancer co-dependencies framework is to
establish a clear, clinically agreed and robust statement of the
dependencies for specialist cancer services. The full framework

41



Page 60

and supporting information is published as a supporting
document to the proposed model of care.

The framework looks only at dependencies for specialist cancer
surgery and bone marrow transplant. Non-surgical cancer
treatment modalities are not included in the framework. However,
any commissioning decisions regarding future services should
take into account dependencies with these other treatment types.

The co-dependencies framework is intended to assist
commissioners in planning any future service configurations.
It can also be used by commissioners and providers as a
benchmarking tool against the current provision of services.

The framework identifies the collocation of different services

required to achieve world-class care. Two levels of dependency

are identified in the framework:

* An optimal service collocation (dependent relationship),
where collocation should be on the same hospital site

» Adesirable service collocation (moderately dependent
relationship), where, if possible, collocation should be on the
same hospital site, or otherwise in the same trust

When deciding on the levels of dependency of services the

following factors were considered:

» Clinical dependency: is the collocation of services required to
deliver a safe service?

» Patient experience: will the collocation of services result in
fewer transfers, reduced lengths of stay and improved patient
experience?

» Effective use of resource and financial efficiency: will
collocation use available resources more effectively, result in
economies of scale, and reduce duplication?

» Optimal level of service: will service collocation improve
service delivery?

42



Page 61

As well as a large number of desirable service collocations, the
following optimal service collocations are identified:

All specialist cancer services with the general service for that
body part (for example, specialist lung cancer surgery has a
dependency with thoracic surgery)

Liver cancer surgery with pancreatic surgery

Pancreatic cancer surgery with liver surgery

Specialist gynaecological cancer surgery with bladder and
prostate surgery

Soft tissue sarcoma (for the provider of retroperitoneal
sarcoma surgery only) with oesophago-gastric surgery,
bladder and prostate and renal surgery (specialist urology)

Considering the optimal service dependencies in the cancer
co-dependencies framework and the recommendations of the
proposed model of care, there are three groups of services
where collocation is recommended:

Service grouping 1: specialist gynaecological, and specialist
prostate and bladder and renal cancer surgery (where the
model of care recommendation to confine management

of renal cancer to prostate and bladder specialist teams is
implemented)

Service grouping 2: liver cancer surgery and pancreatic
cancer surgery

Service grouping 3: specialist UAT cancer surgery, base of
skull and pituitary cancer surgery, brain and CNS surgery, and
spinal cord surgery (where the model of care recommendation
to have specialist UAT teams manage malignant thyroid
tumours is implemented).

Several specialist services then have moderate dependencies
with services in more than one of the above groupings.

For example, soft tissue sarcoma surgery has a moderate
dependency with colorectal, gynaecology and UAT surgery.

43



Page 62

Therefore, where possible, these three groupings of services
could be helpfully collocated with each other.

Taking into account all the moderate service dependencies, with
the exception of breast cancer surgery, skin cancer surgery,
penile cancer surgery, and HPC transplants where there are no
service dependencies identified in the framework, all specialist
services listed would benefit from collocation.

Implications of the framework

The cancer co-dependencies framework is a clear, clinically
agreed and robust statement of the dependencies for specialist
cancer surgery services. It establishes that as far as is possible,
these services should be collocated on the same hospital site.

Configuration of specialist services in London to meet just

the optimal dependencies identified would result in some
consolidation of services, but fragmentation would remain with
multiple sites delivering specialist surgery services across the
capital.

Configuration to meet both optimal and moderate co-
dependencies would result in the creation of a small number

of comprehensive cancer centres, a model that is used
internationally to provide the best possible outcomes for patients.

44



Page 63

11. Financial assessment

Improving early diagnosis will require a limited investment from
commissioners. The level of this investment will reflect the
success in raising awareness of cancer symptoms, improving the
effectiveness of screening programmes, and improving referrals
and access to diagnostics.

The recommended changes to care pathways will reduce the
time that patients spend in hospital and improve follow-up care,
reducing costs to commissioners.

The complexities of identifying cancer-related costs preclude
the full costing of each item in the proposed model of care.

The financial assessments that have been made are therefore
intended to indicate the cost or saving that would result from the
changes proposed. The high-level analysis is published as a
supporting document to the full model of care.

The proposed model of care reemphasises a number of
recommendations made in the Cancer Reform Strategy31 and
other national recommendations so the costs do not result solely
from the implementation of the model of care.

The proposed model of care emphasises that the achievement
of earlier diagnosis has the greatest potential for improving
outcomes and survival for cancer patients in London. Investment
in this area has the potential to increase the early detection of
cancer and save the lives of 1,000 Londoners a year. To offset
this investment, savings can be made through the commissioning
of best practice pathways.

In summary, Figure 6 outlines the pan-London financial impacts
of the proposed model of care.

45



Page 64

€ S0 vl- 6'9- GE- ¢'0- [elol
L'c L'l S0- (47 6'C 91 aJed |eJausb
pue syusw3ieal) |ed16ins-uoN
00 00 00 00 00 00 SJ9dUed aJeJ pue uowwo)
L'L- a'L- 80- 8°0- S0- €0- $1S0D buluaa.dg
L L 'P- L7L- 00 00 00 S1S0D |eulbJew SIapIAOId
eol 6'S Sl €0lL- 6'G- SL- sisoubelp Ajue]
8'L- 'l 9'0- 00 00 00 SYJ0MIDU JDPINOId
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3y w3y
UBIH wWnipsN  MOT UBIH wnipay Mo
si9pinoid slauolssiwwod) Z JedA
L'E vl 0'L- vll- S'9- L'L- [e101
L'c L'l S0 (4 6'C 9l aJed |eJsusb
pue syusw3ieaJy |e316ins-uoN
00 00 00 00 00 00 SJ9dued aJeJ pue uowwo)
LL- 'L 8'0- 8°0- S0- €0- $150D buluaa.dg
7'olL- a9 L'¢- 00 00 00 $1503 |eulbJew siapinoid
8l 68 0°€ 8vlL- 6'8- 0°¢- sisoubelp Ajae3
8'L- al- 9'0- 00 00 00 S}40MIDU JIPINOId
w3 w3 w3 w3 w3y w3y
YbIH wnipay  MmoT YblH wnipsy  mo7

SI9pInOId

Ssiauoissiwwo)

L Jea

aled jo [apow pasodoud ayj jo joedwy :9 ainbi4

46



Page 65

12. A new way of delivering care

With around 13,600 deaths from cancer in the capital each year
and the number of new cases expected to rise, London needs
world-class cancer services to meet this major challenge.

London’s cancer community has built a compelling case for
change, and now puts forward this proposal for a future model of
care to London’s commissioners.

Achieving the recommendations for earlier diagnosis has the
greatest potential for improving outcomes and survival for cancer
patients in London. It will go some way to improve survival rates
to meet the best in Europe and could translate into saving 1,000
Londoners’ lives per year.

The case for change provides a compelling argument for the
improvement of cancer services in London. The proposed model
of care outlines robust, clinically-led solutions that would ensure
that improvements are made in London’s cancer services. These
improvements would enable earlier diagnoses to be made,
improve inpatient care and reduce inequalities in access to and
uptake of services.

Commissioning for cancer should be on the basis of care
pathways. High quality care should be delivered by networks
of providers to allow the sharing of best practice and drive
improvements in cancer services. If they were adopted by
commissioners, the implementation of these changes will
challenge many aspects of the way the NHS has worked in
recent years. Success would largely depend on the willingness
of the individuals and organisations in London to make these
arrangements work.

47



Page 66

Acknowledgements

Project board members

Bill Gillespie (Chair), Chief Executive — Sutton and Merton
PCT, Senior Responsible Officer — Commissioning Support
for London Cancer Project

Dr Andy Mitchell, Medical Director — NHS London

Hannah Farrar, Director of Strategy and System Management
— NHS London

Jane Moore, Associate Regional Director of Public Health —
NHS London

Other project board members denoted by * below

Expert reference panel

48

John Toy (Chair), Professor of Cancer Medicine — Institute of
Cancer, Queen Mary, University of London, Clinical Lead*
Mike Bellamy, Director of the cancer peer review programme
for London, National Cancer Action Team

Adrian Brown, Public Health Consultant — NHS Westminster.
Co-chair of the early diagnosis expert reference group*
Shelley Dolan, Chief Nurse — The Royal Marsden NHS
Foundation Trust. Co-chair of the rarer cancers expert
reference group*

Martin Gore, Medical Director — The Royal Marsden NHS
Foundation Trust, Professor of Cancer Medicine — The
Institute of Cancer Research, London

Nigel Heaton, Consultant Liver Transplant and HPB Surgeon
— King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Professor
of Liver Transplant, Hepato-biliary and Pancreatic Surgery —
King’s College, London. Co-chair of the rarer cancers expert
reference group*

Celia Ingham-Clark, Consultant Colorectal Surgeon and
Medical Director — The Whittington Hospital NHS Trust
Alison Jones, Consultant Medical Oncologist — University
College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Royal
Free Hampstead NHS Trust. Co-chair of the common cancers



Page 67

expert reference group*

Adrian Newland CBE, Professor of Haematology — Queen
Mary, University of London, Medical Director — North East
London Cancer Network. Co-chair of the common cancers
expert reference group*

Sarah Vinnicombe, Consultant Radiologist — Barts and the
London NHS Trust, Director — Central and East London
Breast Screening Service. Co-chair of the early diagnosis
expert reference group*

Expert reference group for early diagnosis

Adrian Brown (Co-chair), Public Health Consultant — NHS
Westminster

Sarah Vinnicombe (Co-chair), Consultant Radiologist — Barts
and the London NHS Trust, Director — Central and East
London Breast Screening Service

Nigel Beharry, Consultant Radiologist — St George’s NHS
Healthcare NHS Trust

Cathy Burton, General Practitioner — Guy’s and St Thomas’
NHS Foundation Trust / South East London Cancer Network
lan Fentiman, Professor of Surgical Oncology — Guy’s and St
Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust

Jessica Hancox, Lead Cancer Nurse — Imperial College
Healthcare NHS Trust

lona Heath CBE, General Practitioner — Camden PCT,
President of the Royal College of General Practitioners
Tuck-Kay Loke, Consultant Respiratory Physician — Mayday
Healthcare NHS Trust

Cyprian Okoro, Consultant in Public Health Medicine — NHS
Ealing, Honorary Senior Lecturer — Imperial College Medical
School

Evelyn Smith, Clinical Nurse Specialist — South West London
Breast Screening Service, St George’s Healthcare NHS Trust
lan Smith, Consultant Medical Oncologist — The Royal
Marsden NHS Foundation Trust, Professor of Cancer
Medicine — The Institute for Cancer Research, London



Page 68

Philip Wilson, Consultant Histopathologist and Clinical
Director for Diagnostics — St George’s Healthcare NHS Trust
Robin Wilson, Consultant Breast Radiologist — The Royal
Marsden NHS Foundation Trust

Expert reference group for common cancers and general
care

50

Adrian Newland (Co-chair), Professor of Haematology —
Queen Mary, University of London, Medical Director — North
East London Cancer Network

Alison Jones (Co-chair), Consultant Medical Oncologist —
University College London Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
and Royal Free Hampstead NHS Trust

Muti Abulafi, Consultant Colorectal Surgeon — Mayday
Healthcare NHS Trust

Tony Brzezicki, General Practitioner — Croydon PCT

Lallita Carbello, Nurse Director — North London Cancer
Network

David Cunningham, Professor of Cancer Medicine — Institute
of Cancer Research, Consultant Medical Oncologist — The
Royal Marsden NHS Foundation Trust

Mark Emberton, Consultant Urologist and Clinical Director for
Cancer Services — University College London Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust

lan Grant, Consultant Haematologist and Lead Clinician

for Cancer Services — Barking, Havering and Redbridge
University Hospitals NHS Trust

Jane Head, Head of Radiotherapy — Barts and the London
NHS Trust

Elizabeth Hadley, Consultant Physician, Respiratory and
General Medicine — Barking, Havering and Redbridge
University Hospitals NHS Trust

Maijiid Kazmi, Consultant Haematologist and Deputy Clinical
Director, Oncology and Haematology — Guy’s and St Thomas’
NHS Foundation Trust

Jane Maher, Consultant Clinical Oncologist — Hillingdon



Page 69

Hospital NHS Trust and Mount Vernon Cancer Centre, NHS
Improvement Lead for Cancer Survivorship

Jan Morrison, Macmillan Lead Cancer Nurse and Breast Care
Nurse — Kingston Hospital NHS Trust

Clare Phillips, Consultant Physician in Palliative Care — Barts
and the London NHS Trust, Clinical Lead for Cancer —
Newham University Hospital NHS Trust

Arnie Purushotham, Professor of Breast Cancer — King’s
College London, Director Integrated Cancer Centre — Guy’s
and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust, King’s College
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Anne Rigg, Consultant Medical Oncologist — Guy’s and St
Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust

Jacky Turner, Lead Network Oncology Pharmacist — Guy’s
and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust and South East
London Cancer Network

Expert reference group for rarer cancers and specialist care

Nigel Heaton (Co-chair), Consultant Liver Transplant and
HPB Surgeon — King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust, Professor of Liver Transplant, Hepatobiliary and
Pancreatic Surgery — King’'s College, London

Shelley Dolan (Co-chair), Chief Nurse — The Royal Marsden
NHS Foundation Trust

Kim Ainsworth, Allied Health Lead — North East London
Cancer Network

Keyoumars Ashkan, Consultant Neurosurgeon — King’s
College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

Sian Davies, Consultant Clinical Oncologist — North
Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust

Claire Dearden, Consultant Haemato-oncologist — Royal
Marsden NHS Foundation Trust, Director — South West
London Cancer Network

Mark Glaser, Consultant Clinical Oncologist and Chief of
Service for Clinical and Medical Oncology — Imperial College
Healthcare NHS Trust

51



Page 70

George Hanna, Professor of Surgical Sciences and
Consultant Oesophago-gastric Cancer Surgeon — Imperial
College Healthcare NHS Trust

Suzanne Harrow, Head of Radiotherapy — Imperial College
Healthcare NHS Trust

Sarah Henderson, Urology Clinical Nurse Specialist — St
George’s Healthcare NHS Trust

Nicholas Hyde, Consultant Maxillofacial/Head and Neck
Surgeon — St George’s Healthcare NHS Trust

Fiona Lofts, Consultant Medical Oncologist and Care Group
Lead — St George’s Healthcare NHS Trust

Adeola Olaitan, Consultant Gynaecological Oncologist
(Surgical) — University College London Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust

Cancer patient panel

Natalie Teich (Co-chair), Representative — Commissioning
Support for London Patient and Public Advisory Group*
Virginia Gorna (Co-chair), Patient representative — West
London Cancer Network*

Barbara Gallagher, Patient representative — South West
London cancer network

Bonnie Green, Representative — Commissioning Support for
London Patient and Public Advisory Group

Mary McNulty, Representative — Commissioning Support for
London Patient and Public Advisory Group

Beryl Pankhurst, Representative — Commissioning Support
for London Patient and Public Advisory Group

Carole Rawlinson, Patient representative — North London
Cancer Network

Mary Sexton, Representative — Commissioning Support for
London Patient and Public Advisory Group

London cancer network leads

52

Alastair Whitington, Network Director — South East London
Cancer Network*®



Page 71

Timothy Jackson, Nurse Director — South East London
Cancer Network

Charlotte Joll, Network Director — South West London Cancer
Network

Jo Champness, Associate Director — South West London
Cancer Network

Karen Gaunt, Associate Director — South West London
Cancer Network

Alison Hill, Nurse Director — South West London Cancer
Network

Fiona Bonas, Network Director — West London Cancer
Network

Carolyn Garritt, Deputy Director — West London Cancer
Network

Josephine Archer, Nurse Director — West London Cancer
Network

Chris Ward, Network Director — North London Cancer
Network

Lallita Carbello, Nurse Director — North London Cancer
Network

Bob Park, Network Director — North East London Cancer
Network

Paul Trevatt, Nurse Director — North East London Cancer
Network

Ursula Peaple, Acting Lead Rare Cancers — London
Specialised Commissioning Group, Programme Manager
Young People with Cancer — London and South East Coast
Specialised Commissioning Groups

Other contributors

Alan Burnett, Professor of Haematology — Cardiff University
School of Medicine

Kathie Binysh, Medical Director — West London Cancer
Network

Richard Charnley, Consultant Hepatobiliary and Pancreatic
Surgeon — The Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS

53



54

Page 72

Foundation Trust

Peter Clark, Professor of Medical Oncology — Clatterbridge
Centre for Oncology NHS Foundation Trust, Co-chair of the
National Chemotherapy Advisory Group (NCAG)

Jessica Corner, Head of School of Health Sciences —
University of Southampton

Sean Duffy, Medical Director — Yorkshire Cancer Network
Paul Finan, Consultant Colorectal Surgeon — Leeds Teaching
Hospitals NHS Trust

Michael Griffin, Consultant Surgeon — Newcastle upon Tyne
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Professor of Gastrointestinal
Surgery — University of Newcastle upon Tyne

Peter Johnson, Professor of Medical Oncology — University of
Southampton, Chief Clinician — Cancer Research UK

Nora Kearney, Professor of Nursing and Cancer Care —
University of Dundee

Martin Lee, Consultant Surgeon — University Hospitals
Coventry and Warwickshire NHS Trust, President of the
Association of Breast Surgery at BASO

David Luesley, Professor of Gynaecological Oncology —
University of Birmingham, Consultant Gynaecologist — City
Hospital NHS Trust, Birmingham

Toni Mathie , Greater Manchester and Cheshire Cancer
Network Programme Director

Teresa Moss, Director — National Specialised Commissioning,
NHS London

Julietta Patnick CBE, Director — NHS Cancer Screening
Programmes

Michael Peake, Consultant Respiratory Physician and Lead
for Lung Cancer — University Hospitals of Leicester NHS
Trust, National Clinical Lead for Lung Cancer — NHS Cancer
Improvement, Clinical Lead — National Cancer Intelligence
Network

Sir Michael Richards CBE, National Clinical Director for
Cancer

Greg Rubin, Professor of General Practice and Primary Care



Page 73

— Durham University

Michael Williams, Consultant Clinical Oncologist — Cambridge
University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Dana-Farber Cancer Institute, Boston

Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer Center, New York

Sidney Kimmel Comprehensive Cancer Centre at Johns
Hopkins, Baltimore

Stanford Cancer Center, California

55



Page 74

Glossary

Cancer Awareness Measure- a tool that has been designed to
measure cancer symptom awareness among the general public

Cancer Reform Strategy- a Department of Health cancer strategy
published in 2007

Chemotherapy- treatment of cancer using specific chemical
agents or drugs that are selectively destructive to malignant cells
and tissues

Colorectal- relating to the large bowel (colon and rectum)
Gynaecological- relating to the female reproductive system
Haematological- relating to the blood and blood-forming organs

Haematopoietic progenitor cell transplantation- the
transplantation of blood stem cells derived from the bone marrow
or blood

Health Innovation and Education Clusters- government funded
networks aimed at delivering high quality patient care through
better trained clinicians and faster translation and adoption of
research and innovation

Hepato-pancreato-biliary- relating to the liver, pancreas and
biliary tract

Improving outcomes guidance- service guidance produced by
NICE on improving outcomes for patients

Keyworker- a person who, with the patient’s consent and
agreement, takes a key role in coordinating and promoting
continuity of the patient’s care, ensuring the patient knows who to

56



Page 75

access for information and advice

Laparoscopic surgery- a surgical technique in which operations
are performed through small incisions, also called minimally
invasive surgery and keyhole surgery

London Specialised Commissioning Group- a joint committee
of London PCTs that commissions specialised services
collaboratively for all of London

Multidisciplinary team- a group of doctors, nurses and other
health care professionals who come together to provide
comprehensive assessment of possible and confirmed cancer
cases

National Awareness and Early Detection Initiative- Department of
Health initiative to co-ordinate and support activities that promote
the early diagnosis and treatment of cancer

Neuro-oncology- the branch of medicine dealing with tumours of
the nervous system

NHS Cancer Plan- Department of Health cancer strategy
published in 2000

NICE (National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence)- an
independent organisation responsible for providing national
guidance on promoting good health, and preventing and treating
ill health

Oesophago-gastric- pertaining to the oesophagus and stomach

Palliative- medical care or treatment that concentrates on
reducing the severity of disease symptoms

Pancreatectomy- removal of all or part of the pancreas

57



Page 76

Pancreatic- relating to the pancreas
Pituitary- relating to the pituitary gland

Radiotherapy- the medical use of ionizing radiation as part of
cancer treatment to control malignant cells

Sarcoma- a malignant tumour arising in tissue such as
connective tissue, bone, cartilage, or striated muscle that
spreads by extension into neighbouring tissue or by way of the
bloodstream

Systemic anti-cancer therapy (SACT)- A group of therapies
including chemotherapy, endocrine therapy, and hormonal
therapy used to kill or slow the growth of cancer cells

Thoracic- relating to the region of the body extending from the
neck to the diaphragm, not including the upper limbs

Thyroid- relating to the thyroid gland

Upper aero-digestive tract- the region of the body comprised of
the ear, nasal cavity, mouth, pharynx, and larynx

Upper gastrointestinal- relating to the oesophagus, stomach and
duodenum (small bowel)

Urological- relating to the urinary tracts of males and females,
and the reproductive system of males

58



Page 77

Notes

1. Gordon-Dseagu, V., Cancer Research UK response to Mayor
of London’s Reducing health inequalities- issues for London
and priorities for action consultation, September 2007,
http://info.cancerresearchuk.org/images/pdfs/lonmayor
healthinequal_07

2. Office for National Statistics, ‘London: a city of wealth or
deprivation?’, 25 June 2003, http://www.statistics.gov.uk/cci/
nugget.asp?id=393 [accessed October 2009]

3. Coupland V.H., et al, ‘The future burden of cancer in London

compared with England’, Journal of Public Health, 2009

Department of Health, Cancer Reform Strategy, 2007

Department of Health, The NHS Cancer plan: a plan for

investment, a plan for reform, 2000

6. Berrino, F. et al, ' EUROCARE Working Group: Survival for
eight major cancers and all cancers combined for European
adults diagnosed in 1995-99: results of the EUROCARE-4
study’, Lancet Oncology, 2007; 8:773-783

7. Wardle, J. NAEDI Newsletter, National Awareness and Early
Diagnosis Initiative, July 2008

8. Elliott, K. Cancer Awareness Measure, Getting Started Event,
National Cancer Action Team, June 2009

9. Department of Health, Referral guidelines for suspected
cancer, 2000

10.London Quality Assurance Reference Centre (QARC),
London Breast Screening Programme Annual Results April
1st 2007 to March 31st 2008

11. Cheung, MC. et al., ‘Impact of teaching facility status and
high-volume centers on outcomes for lung cancer resection:
an examination of 13,469 surgical patients’, Ann Surg Oncol.
2009;16(1):3-13

12.NICE, Improving Outcomes for People with Skin Tumours
including Melanoma: the Manual, 2006

13.British Society for Haematology, Facilities for the Treatment of
Adults with Haematological Malignancies — ‘Levels of Care’,

Sl



Page 78

2009

14.National Chemotherapy Advisory Group, Chemotherapy
Services in England: Ensuring quality and safety, 2009

15. National Radiotherapy Advisory Group, Radiotherapy:
Delivering a world-class service for England, 2007

16. The London Assembly — Health and Public Services
Committee, Behind the Screen: Breast Screening Uptake and
Radiotherapy waiting times in London, March 2008

17.National Cancer Peer Review Programme 2004-2007,
London Network reports

18.London Health Observatory, London’s health and healthcare:
Key facts, 2006. http://www.lho.org.uk/publications/
Ihopublications.aspx [accessed November 2009]

19. National Chemotherapy Advisory Group, Chemotherapy
Services in England: Ensuring quality and safety, 2009

20. Department of Health, Macmillan Cancer Support & NHS
Improvement, The National Cancer Survivorship Initiative
Vision, 2010

21.NICE, Improving Supportive and Palliative Care for Adults
with Cancer, 2004

22.NICE, Improving Supportive and Palliative Care for Adults
with Cancer, 2004

23.NICE, Improving Outcomes Guidance in Upper Gastro-
intestinal Cancers —The Manual, 2001

24.The Association of Upper Gastrointestinal Surgeons,
Guidance on Minimum Volumes, 2010

25.British Association for the Study of the Liver, British Society
of Gastroenterology, The National Plan for Liver Services —
A time to act: Improving liver health and outcomes in liver
disease, 2009

26.NICE, Improving Outcomes in Urological Cancers: The
Manual, 2002

27.NICE, Improving Outcomes in Head and Neck Cancers, 2004

28.NICE, Improving Outcomes in Head and Neck Cancers, 2004

29.NICE, Improving Outcomes in Gynaecological Cancers: The
manual, 1999

60



Page 79

30.NICE, Improving Outcomes for People with Sarcoma, 2006
31.Department of Health, Cancer Reform Strategy, 2007

61



62

Page 80

CSL intelligence
Increasing efficiency and reducing
duplication

CSL service design

Transforming frontline services and
driving up standards of care

CSL support
Providing training and development
opportunities for NHS commissioners

www.csl.nhs.uk info@csl.nhs.uk 020 76856800



Agenda ltem 7

’

Page 81

TARUL SHN RO (Fuay

[ SHN| Aabupuey pur playul 1auleg

o — | L0Z 1840120
Ag ysni| uonepuno4 SHN Ue alWweasq o) suejd INo LM pIBMIO) A0 -

siapjoyayels Aay Ine B ypm
uoneloqe|joa ul ‘suejd uawdoBAsp J0IAISS INO YIIM PIEMID) A0 -

saaialas Alunwwed piayul jo Jgjsuel ay) abeuew Ajnjssasong -

Awouooa yyjeay |eao| pabuajeyo Aan
e uiypm ‘siabie) uswiaaoidw) 1509 pue [glauguy o Buusalap deay -

uoijesisiBay) D07 (N WU -

puewap Buiseasnul
pue suoyeoadxa Buisu yojew o} 'saoinias ino Buiacidiu daay .

op 0} 10] B ||)S I 2Jalj) 'SHBWaAalyoe 3jqeiapisuoa aydsaq

Z - MOU 3M 3. aI3YpA

SIS YUmBH (R

110Z Adenuer | uo | HIN 0} Jojsuel)
0} anp ‘saIAIeg Ajunwiwio) payug Joy Jeuped pausjald pajuioddy .

sieak om)
1se| Joj awiwelboid yuswoanoidu 1500 Buibuajeys AISA pasaalRg -

sleak om)se| 1o} sjobue] [BIDUBUY PIASIDY -
yiomawel4 AiojeinBay OO Mau Japun uonensiBay |Ind .

sieak
OM] JSB| 10§ DD Wwoly sBunes pooo), pue Ju|jaoxd, JO JUSWBAIIYDY

:Apuaoal ssasfoid o joj B apew sey Jsni|

L - MOU aMm ale aJdYM

e LT
E2] AeBuneH pue pjal

Jaded SJUM SHN MaU 3y} 10 1Bl au}
ut Azeinoied ‘s1aquiaw JSH diepdn o} swie uonewssald jeug siyl -

ainny ay) Joj sueid s snu) ay) adeys o} padjoy aABY SMIIAISAY|

Jeak }se| 8y} Jano S1aUJ0 pue S4SH / SOSO ‘SanioyIne [eoo)
siauped GHN ‘SI9IBD ‘SIaSN 80IAI9S UM play sbunesw jo saueg .

0102 Yo.iep pue 00z Jo4qo1oQ Ut — sabueyd 1o pasu
sy} Buiuipno pasnpo.d siaded uoissnosip ,poos) 1oj Buibuey), om|

SODIAISS INO JO 91NNy SY] UO SISP|OYINEIS
Jo afiues apm e yim suoissnosip Buiobuo ino jo ped si syl -

uoioNpoIu|

L DN G ey

[SHIN | Aabuuey pue pjayus .-mEm&\\\\\\\\\\\\]

m——

010¢ 4940320 02
g0 AabuueH 03 ajepdn

G102 01 0102
S9OIAI9S U)jeay jejuswi jo Juawdojanap ay |

A muOOmu .._OL.
I Buibuey>

74 RRR
‘&




Page 82

P, G 1 (R

SOAjjBUIBYE SAIDaYe Ajlediulo alow
Buidojensp pue pabeuew aie sjusijed disusio4 Aem ay) buibueyy o

$991A19G 9iSuslo4 Buiwlojsuel] 5

sjeydsoy ajnoe uf a1ed eguawap Bupoddng o
$90IA18S Juswiesl) Alowsw Buipuedxy o
epuswap yim adoad 10j Jusuiesal) swoy Buipuedxy o
sidoad seplo j0 SisqUINU U
aseauou| |jessn0 ay) pue ABajens enuswaq jeuoleN ay) Buipuodsey ©
$99]A18S enjuawa( Bulwioysuer ) .
sayjiwiey 118y} woyj sidoad BunoA ajeledas 0} PoSU OU St 813Y) 0S —

aie2 Jusiiedu) 0} seAeUlS)e paseq Aliunwiwoo Jjo sbues e Buidojersg  ©
S92IAIOS JUBDS3|OPY puk pliy) Bujwiojsues] .

Z - sueyd }saje| ano jo Alewwing

ML S il (L

(SHIV| Aabupey pue playus jeuieg
— —

—

™~ e __—fauaoi e pue Aenh araduy
TorsBgIe |sijens ds OlULSISNION esed | WD J1aua b juauna Buisroo o
2480 LB

o0} Yoddns asow Buipinoud pue auen Aewud u seanies Buidojans o
ale) Aewud
ojul sesjases Buippeque pue aien funwwos Bujwojsuer ) .
ssauaNoaa |SO0 pUB [ESlUlja BSilLIXE
0} syuh taaa) oju sepoe J luapedul Bullews) Ino 0 UoEmiosUeD O
suies| jusiujeal] swol ay BuiusyBuans —
yBnasaq yoes U saljuag Amapoay —
8123 |uaedul o} seAlBLUE)E Jalun)
Buidojeaap yBnouy) s peq yueay (ejuaw juanedul jo esn Jno Bupnpsy o
aseq uenedu| Bujwiojsuesy .
sagjAaes J)isiol aioll dojaa ap o) seifusulds EaupD
Buoss uo Buip)ng "sasinlas yieay (euew pue |eaefyd jo uogeiBalyl o
L L0Z Auea fq plajus SHN Wol) ssatiag Ajuniu wo) payud jo mjsuel] o
sa2jaleg fjjunwiwoy pjaiyul jo uoneiBajul pue Jajsues) .

sEale uawdoessp eoiAaes (Eoiujis £ay S o) eunyng 8yl o) sue|d ing PesUE LWILLING SATY BAA

L - sue|d 3saje| Jno jo Alewwing

L SHIN AR e

() Aebuuien PP
[njssa20Ns

99 0} SI I §i 'JeIS IO pue siduped INo ‘sIBied ‘s1asn S0IAIesS
YJIM UOIJEIOGR|0D Ul SUOP 3 ISNW SIY} 18U} ‘JOABMOY JB3[O 3IB Sp -

uo premio} Buiroul
LBIS 0] PasuU MOU am 4djym ‘1eah 1se| U3 JoA0 [9A8] YBiY Je passnosip
usaq aney yoym ‘pauueld sabueyo Jofew jo sauas e ale a1ay | .

S9OIAISS Ylesy [ejusw pue {eaisAyd tsyeboy Buibuug ‘seoiaies ino
Buidojensp uj dajs BIq e st S8IAIBS AJUNWILLOY PIBYUT JO JojsuBl] O
SUOIIE0| JUSISHIP Ul ‘SABM JUBISYIP Ul
‘$80IA18S J0 9buel Jopeolq e BuusAiap aq 1M 1SN By} ‘BN 3y} U .

9|qIssod Se salWoy s Jasn 3DIAISS 0} 3SO[0
Sse palonjap ‘AIsA00al SAOR pue yyeay (|l Jo uoiuasaid oy} ‘Sa0IAISS
ol)sIjoy 0wl jo uojowiold By} UOSIsSN0) ABsienS ainny S sy Sy .

1HW-H3g 1o} suoneaydu|

IR ey

9210490 juanjed Bunowoid yum JudlsISuo o
SOUSPIAS [BIUID JB3|D) O
yuswabebus yusned pue olgnd pauayibuals o
SIBUOISSILILWD (S WoJj Joddng o

:safueyo aoinIes
auniny Joj sue|d BuISSISSE 10} S1S9) N0} 19S SBY JUDWUIBA0D) MBN  »

SJOUOISSIWILOD S Sd5)
‘AiBuseassul ‘pue yeys SHN ‘siauped ‘sjdoad |eoo| ‘siaieo ‘sjualjed
Aq uaaup ‘dn woj0q siow g 0} spIau $s2001d sbueyd ‘JSAIMOM

$90IN0s3al
paonpais Ajjuesyiubis yim — Ajjenb aaoidw pue asiuiapow
0] 8NURUOS 0} SPaaU SHN Jey) pajjeubls sey JUSWUIBAOS) MBN  »

suejd Jno uo oedul Yoiym _nm::m% puB POUOISSILLILIOD 1B SIVIAIDS
SHN Aem ul sabueyo jueoyiubis sjeufis Jaded sUM SHN MON  »

sjuswidojaAap Juaday




Page 83

Ajepimesay) Buueys pue sa21A18s Ino 0 sabueyd 1o} sjesodoud
oyvads asow Buidojsnap aq [[im am SUIUOW M3} JXBU aY} JOAQD)  «

aunny ayj Joy ueyd 03
SIap|oYa¥e]ls Uno jje ypm Buppom jnoge [je st yoiym ‘swiwelbold poos)
104 BuibueyD, 1o ybnoiyy sy} Jo joj e Buiop usaq Apesije sAey apn -

siapjoysxels
Jayjo pue yejs ‘sjuaijed jo Juswabebus alow yym ‘dn woyoq
aJour aq 0} spaau Buiuuejd SHN 83j0 JI BpeW SeY JUSWUISA0E) MAN -

sda}g IXaN

TR 5 G sy

g AabBuuey pue pjajju3 ‘laweg

11 Jno anoidus
0} }S3q MOY puB ainjny 8y} Joj pasu am Jeum Buimairal AuaLIND ale apA
spasu

1IN0 }38W JOU Op pue 100d 818 SWIJSAS UOKBLIOUI PU. 1} JUBLNo INQ

swaysAg uonjewrioju] ino Burroaduwy .

}JBJS pUE SIasn 30(AI8S JO suofjeoadxa

sy} sisaw It 0s ‘9lriss Bujutewal Ino jo Ajfenb sy anoidwil O] Juem spp
sspuoyine jeaot “Bs sisuped Jayjo yim aoeds jo Buueys aiow

pue afesn Jajiaq yym ‘awi} JaAo Buionpal 81eise INo JO 82IS 8Y) 93S SAA
sBuipjing

JO s]of Bululejuiew JOU ‘$30IAISS UO $3DIN0SAS INO SNOOJ O} JUBM SN
abueyo jim sapiiioe) pue Buipjing oy

paau Jno ‘sawoy s,8jdoad 0} 8s0j0 10 Ul papIACId Bie SSDIAISS BI0W SY

ajeys3g 1no Buisiuopopy .

'sJajqeusa A3y om} Ag papioddns aie sjuswdojgasp 80IAISS [BOIUID A8Y XIS INQO)

[o]

o]

[o]

¢ - suejd }saje] ino jo Arewwing




Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85 Agenda Item 8

NHS

Haringey

BRIEFING FOR HARINGEY COUNCIL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HEARING ON HEALTH —- WEDNESDAY 20 OCTOBER HORNSEY
NEIGHBOURHOOD HEALTH CENTRE

This paper gives a brief overview of the issues the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
wishes to discuss with NHS Haringey at the special health hearing.

Camidoc/Out of Hours Service

After winning a competitive tender process for the new contract, Camidoc alerted the
Consortium of Camden, Islington, Haringey and City and Hackney PCTs to problems
regarding its financial status. With the agreement and co-operation of Camidoc, the
Consortium commissioned an independent business review which confirmed the
seriousness and ongoing nature of the problem. It was clear that Camidoc was
technically insolvent and that this could compromise future service delivery in both
the short and longer term.

Taking all of this into consideration, the consortium concluded that it could not
confidently and safely ensure continuity of the out of hours service by entering into a
new contract with Camidoc.

An emergency provider has been appointed for a nine month period to provide an out
of hours service while a reprocurement exercise is undertaken. The consortium
appointed Harmoni, which already provides out of hours care to people across eight
London PCTs.

Harmoni has similar origins to Camidoc as a GP cooperative. Both organisations
state that they believe in delivering a local GP led, clinically safe service to the
patients. Harmoni was started in 1996 as a GP co-operative in Harrow, West
London. The two founding GPs, Dr David Lloyd and Dr Nizar Meralli, are still active
within the company today. It now provides services to over nine million patients in
England on behalf of over 20 PCTs, handling up to 70,000 calls per month. Within
London, Harmoni already deliver out of hours care to approximately two million
patients across eight PCTs.

Section 242 of the NHS Act 2006 was complied with when setting the service
specification for the new contract for which Camidoc was the preferred provider.

Harmoni is providing cover for this contract on an interim basis for a period of nine
months. The service delivery remains the same, e.g. there are no changes to the
location of delivery, hours of service, methods of contact or even the service
telephone number. Legal advice has confirmed that there is no obligation to consult
under section 242 off the NHS Act as there is no change in service provision
between Camidoc and Harmoni.

All decisions regarding the appointment of an alternative provider and the selection of
that provider were taken by the Consortium Board with the full support of the
individual PCTs. Local clinical leaders have been kept informed and GP and LINks
representatives from each PCT have been invited onto service mobilisation groups



Page 86

The PCTs have an obligation to ensure that value for money is demonstrated across
all services. Furthermore, the duty of the Consortium is to ensure a safe and
consistent out of hours service is provided, irrespective of any actual or perceived
differences in organisational form or ideology.

The service set-up costs are being paid to Harmoni, on an open book basis, in
recognition of the short term nature of the contract. With longer term contracts these
costs would be expected to be recovered by the provider over the contract period.

Set-up costs for this short term contract have been estimated at £50k per PCT. The
monthly cost of the Harmoni service is comparable to that of the Camidoc service.

The PCTs, based on financial information previously provided by Camidoc were able
to estimate likely costs of Camidoc providing the service for the nine month period.
These costs were deemed likely to be approximately 20 per cent higher than the
current monthly contract value. This would be more than the contract value agreed
with Harmoni. In fact it would have been inappropriate for the PCTs to contract with
Camidoc for the nine month period for the same reasons that caused the
abandonment of the original procurement.

Patient safety and sound clinical governance are of paramount importance to the
PCTs and the service provider. The PCTs, as part of the temporary provider
selection process, sought assurances as to the robustness and appropriateness of
proposed arrangements.

The performance framework set out within the contract will allow ongoing monitoring
of the delivery of the service. Local GP representatives are also involved in
overseeing the transition and Governance arrangements.

Local knowledge is recognised as being key to the effective delivery of the service.
Eligible staff, including current call centre staff, drivers and GP roster/shift
coordinators, have the right to have their employment transferred to Harmoni under
TUPE on the same terms and conditions. Harmoni have confirmed that they are
committed to continuing to work with local GP’s in the delivery of the service.

8 till 8 Service at Hornsey

NHS Haringey commissioned the pilot walk in service in April 2010 for people who
required access to primary care services outside of GP normal working hours and at
weekends. The pilot scheme finished on 1 September.

It was always our intention to review the service after completion of the pilot phase,
to see how it complemented the other ways of accessing care including NHS Direct,
our out of hours services and extended GP opening hours.

Our original projected demand at the time of commissioning the pilot was that it
should see 30 patients per day, 900 patients per month. The service started slowly
but in July saw approximately 700 patients.

The vast majority of GPs in the West of the borough already provide extended
opening hours, and it was clear that the walk in service was being used by some
patients as an alternative to routine GP appointments, which is not an appropriate
use of the service.



Page 87

NHS Haringey put in place a communications plan to inform the public that the
service is no longer available, and signposting them to the other ways that people
obtain medical advice and treatment.

We are now actively evaluating the pilot whilst we do that we have suspended the
pilot from September 2010 to April 2011. This has been necessitated due to other
changes in the provision of out of hours services and the need to have a more
streamlined approach towards unscheduled care that is cost effective and efficient,
taking into account how best we can ensure people can access services outside of
normal GP hours.

NHS Haringey is committed to ensuring that Hornsey neighbourhood health centre is
a key community asset for the provision of medical services in the area. Services
that are already provided at the centre include physiotherapy, foot health and
midwifery clinics, and we are working very closely with the Whittington Hospital to
provide new clinical services including treatments for diabetes and dermatology.

NHS Haringey will continue to work with the practice at Hornsey and other
stakeholders to evaluate how all primary care services, including NHS Direct, our out
of hours services and extended GP opening hours work together to deliver a
comprehensive service for patients ensuring the best use of NHS resources.

Buses to Hornsey

One challenge for community based health facilities is the provision of public
transport links. Major hospitals are usually situated near public transport hubs, while
neighbourhood health centres are based in the community, and not always near
maijor public transport routes. The Hornsey neighbourhood health centre is on the
W7 bus route, and is near to the W5 and W3 routes. That said, there have been
calls for better public transport access, and NHS Haringey has discussed the issue
regularly with Transport for London. TfL do review routes, but will want to see
significant unmet passenger demand before changing routes.

Recently NHS Haringey met with Haringey Bus Watch to discuss options for
improving transport access to the Hornsey health centre. It was recognised that
unless there was significant demand for access to the centre from people who had
mobility issues, it would difficult to persuade TfL to increase access to the centre.
NHS Haringey is currently looking at what the current and projected services are for
Hornsey which may be for people with mobility issues. If there are not significant
numbers, then we will investigate alternative transport arrangements such as
encouraging volunteers to pick up patients and take them to the centre, and
arrangement which many acute hospitals provide.

NE Tottenham Health Centre

Tottenham, one of the most deprived areas of the borough and the need to develop a
substantial presence for health in this area has long been a priority for both Haringey
and Enfield.

The opportunity to develop a flagship polyclinic in Tottenham, adjacent to the Spurs
stadium redevelopment is a unique opportunity to address the needs of the poorest
population in London. Spur planning for stadium has been approved, we have
developed proposals with Elevate, our property management partners, but have no
money available at the moment to take this project forward. We want to provide good
quality healthcare from this site but have to be realistic about the financial position,



Page 88

which means securing the necessary funding will be difficult in the current financial
climate.

The Laurels

Services at the centre are provided under an APMS (alternative personal medical
services) contract by a partnership between LHS Ltd (a consortium of two Haringey
GP practices) and Camidoc.

LHS Ltd have now informed us that because of uncertainty around Camidoc’s
financial situation, they are no longer in a position to continue to provide their service
at The Laurels. They therefore wish to hand the contract back to the PCT on 15"
September 2010.

We are currently negotiating with the medical director at the Laurels to continue to
provide services until 30 September. This will allow us to put in place appropriate
communication and contingency plans.

In order to ensure patient safety and continuity for the patients registered at the
practice, NHS Haringey is putting in place a temporary emergency APMS contract
until March 2011 at the earliest. The APMS contract will be for core GP services run
by a local GP.

Under the APMS contract, an 8-8 seven days a week walk in service was also
provided. However, information from the Laurels Healthy Living Centre shows that it
was used by a small number of local patients, most of which were already registered
with the practice or neighbouring practices.

We have therefore decided that because we are agreeing new temporary
arrangements, we will no longer provide the 8-8 and the walk in service for the rest of
the financial year. It is our intention to consult and commission the provision of a
walk in service from next year under a new APMS contract.

In the meantime we will be informing patients at the practice that the walk in service
is currently suspended, and that if they do have an urgent medical need, they should
either contact our out of hours provider, NHS Direct or go to their nearest A&E
centre.

Pharmacy provision in the Laurels Healthy Living Centre

In January 2010 NHS Haringey received an application from the Bridge Renewal
Services to open a pharmacy in the Laurels. We considered the application under
the regulatory test of whether a pharmacy would be necessary or expedient in order
to secure adequate pharmaceutical services in a particular neighbourhood. The PCT
received many letters of support, including local residents, two Haringey Councillors
and the local MP. There were also many letters from local pharmacies opposing the
application. The application was declined on the grounds that there were already
sufficient pharmacies in the neighbourhood.

In May 2010 we received a second application for a pharmacy to open under an
exemption category whereby a pharmacy opening for more than 100 hours per week
is exempt from the regulatory test described above. We had no grounds to refuse
this application which was approved in September 2010.



Page 89

NHS Haringey financial update report for 2010/11

NHS Haringey faces a number of major pressures on its resources for 2010/11,
which means it estimates it is heading toward a significant deficit on its budget. This
note sets out what these pressures are, and what NHS Haringey is doing to address
them in order to minimise any overspend.

Budgetary pressures

Low income growth: NHS Haringey’s income grew by only £3.6m for 2010/11.

Significant growth in acute expenditure: In the last two years there has been £24m
growth in acute expenditure. Reasons for this increase in expenditure include an
eight per cent increase in recorded activity per annum which represents £14m of the
£24m total; high cost drug usage and newly recorded procedures; and an increase in
emergency procedures. This, and other reasons has resulted in NHS Haringey’s
growth in acute spend being the highest in the north central London sector. This
situation has been compounded by the Government’s changes to the funding
formulae for how much PCTs pay for secondary care services, which has meant we
now have to pay more. This means there has been an increase in the demand for
secondary care services, and an increase in the amount we pay for secondary care
services.

Other pressures: There has been an increase in forensic mental health patient
numbers; the cost of providing continuing care has increased; and a growth in our
expenditure on prescription drugs.

Savings

NHS Haringey has looked at all aspects of its operation to see where savings can be
made in order to reduce the level of any end of year overspend. Each year we have
always been required to make efficiency savings, but this year because of the
pressure on our budget, the scale of the savings is significantly higher. Originally we
hoped to achieve these savings by transferring appropriate services out of acute
hospitals and into our community facilities such as Hornsey health centre, and
through other efficiency and productivity gains.

However, although we have transferred some services into our health centres, the
shift has not been sufficient to meet the savings targets, and neither have the
productivity and efficiency gains. The NHS Haringey board therefore agreed to an
additional savings plan, which we estimate will save us £12m over the course of the
year. However, we continue to explore all opportunities to achieve additional
savings.

As a consequence of these pressures, NHS Haringey currently estimates that it faces
a significant deficit at the end of this financial year.

Healthcare support for adults living in care homes

NHS Haringey provides a full range of healthcare support to all residents of the
borough who are registered with a General Practitioner (GP). This support includes
servicing the needs of those residents who live in multiple occupancy
accommodation and specifically nursing and residential care homes.



Page 90

The majority of GPs aligned to Nursing Care homes manage to provide the
appropriate level of healthcare support. However, in 2008 NHS Haringey introduced
a Locally Enhanced Service (LES) that provided further support in the form of
additional payment to GPs for the provision of healthcare to the residents of the
Nursing Care Homes. This was taken up by GPs covering four Nursing Homes out
of the 17 in Haringey, three of which come under Haringey Council’s direct
management.

As part of the 2010/11 quality and efficiency review, NHS Haringey took the view that
such a service was neither equitable, as it covered only four nursing homes, nor
appropriate as the main healthcare needs of these residents should be covered by
the GPs under the contractual obligations. The PCT therefore gave notice to the four
GPs receiving the LES payment. Subsequent to this GPS providing services under
the LES to two of the care homes notified us that they no longer wished to provide
care to the clients in these care homes.

NHS Haringey has therefore made arrangements for appropriate healthcare support
to be maintained at these four homes. Our Practice & Practitioner Service (PPS)
Manager wrote to the GP surgeries, patients and care homes on the 28"September
to confirm the new allocations and advising the care homes how to register patients
with the new GPs. An email with patient allocations was sent to the care home
managers on the 28" and 29" September.

NHS Haringey has recently recruited a new Community Matron for Care Homes, who
is also a nurse prescriber. We are arranging for them to be registered locally and to
work closely with the appointed GPs and Care Home staff and managers. As part of
her work, the community matron has started with the two care homes where we have
reallocated clients to new GPs and in addition NHS Haringey will provide a simple
contact guide to each home to ensure there is no disruption to services from October
onwards.

NHS Haringey is committed to ensuring that all residents in the care homes in
Haringey receive good quality primary care services.

Report of the clinical panel on their review of the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey
clinical strategy

Since 2006, Barnet, Enfield and Haringey PCTs, together with the hospitals at
Barnet, Chase Farm and North Middlesex, have been working together to plan safer
and stronger healthcare services locally.

Following an extensive consultation process and agreement by the then Secretary of
State for Health, the programme to provide better healthcare services began to be
implemented last year.

This work was halted by the Health Secretary, Andrew Lansley, in May 2010 pending
the outcome of a review of the planned changes against four tests. He outlined his
vision to ensure that patient outcomes and clinical evidence are at the heart of any
changes to health services, stating that all service changes must be led by clinicians
and patients, not driven from the top down.

The Secretary of State requires reconfiguration proposals to demonstrate:

« support from GP commissioners;
« strengthened public and patient engagement, including local authorities;



Page 91

« clarity on the clinical evidence base; and
« consistency with current and prospective patient choice.

As part of the assessment of the support from GP commissioners, the BEH clinical
strategy team put together a panel of clinicians from across the three boroughs to
review the clinical arguments that underpin the BEH strategy. Dr Jatin Pandya
represented Haringey on this panel, which met from 27 September to 1 October.

The purpose of the clinical review group is to:

¢ Review the clinical evidence for the service change envisaged in the BEH
Strategy - assessing separately Women’s services, Children’s services,
Urgent Care, Primary Care, Planned Care

e ascertain whether any change in circumstance or evidence has taken place in
the three years since the original consultation

e Engage wider GP body in each PCT area

e Provide a digest of the evidence and advice to the Strategic Review Group in
each local authority area.

The Group will produce a summary report by 6™ October 2010. This report will be
available to the Strategic Review Groups, wider body of GPs, LINks and Local
Authorities and be posted on the PCTs’ web sites.

Duncan Stroud

Associate Director — Communications and Engagement
NHS Haringey

11 October 2010



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93 Agenda ltem 9

NHS

Haringey
PCT mergers and transition arrangements

There are three major drivers for change in the NHS at present:

o The NHS is required to make £15bn efficiency savings over three years, at a
time when demand for the use of NHS services continues to rise with
consequential pressures on budgets. This means the NHS must find ways to
do things more efficiently and more effectively, with less money.

e The Government proposes to devolve commissioning of services to new GP
consortia from 2013. GPs will need to develop new skills and resources to
deliver this. It will also mean the abolition of the 151 PCTs across the country
and 10 strategic health authorities. These have been billed as the biggest
changes to the NHS in 40 years.

¢ The NHS has been required to reduce its management costs by 50 per cent.

In discussion with their own boards and NHS London, the five PCTs that make up
NHS North Central London (NCL) — Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey and Islington
— are working together to put in transition arrangements that will support the move to
GP commissioning and deliver the 50 per cent management savings. The key
elements of these changes are:

e Create a single transition team across the five PCTs, with teams in each PCT
reporting along a single line of accountability to the CEO for NCL.

e Determine what can be done locally and what can be done centrally. Central
functions will typically be corporate ones including human resources,
communications and acute commissioning. Local functions will be liaison
with local authorities, support for emerging GP consortia and specific quality
assurance and governance — eg safeguarding. We recognise that maintain a
strong local presence will be essential moving forward with the transition
arrangements.

¢ Decide how the five PCTs can be restructured to deliver the required 50 per
cent management savings. If possible, NHS London want us to deliver the 50
per cent savings by April 2011, subject to discussion with them and the
individual PCT boards. This will release money in 2011/12 to be invested into
GP commissioning

We recognise that there are many issues that need to be addressed, and that we are
only at the start of this process. But given the need to resolve these issues as
quickly as possible, close working and discussion with all our partner organisations
including local authorities and clinicians is going to be vital in order to deliver a
smooth transition to the new working arrangements, and deliver the new ways of
working and efficiency savings the NHS is required to make.

Duncan Stroud

Associate Director — Communications and Engagement
NHS Haringey

11 October 2010



Page 94



	Agenda
	5 Support Functions Review (SFR) â•ﬁ Policy and Performance Functions
	2. SFR PP General Purposes Committee
	3. SFR Revised App 1PP Model GP report (2)

	6 Cardiovascular & Cancer services - presentation
	7 CHANGING FOR GOOD
	8 NHS Haringey Update
	9 PRIMARY CARE TRUST MERGERS

